
 

 
LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 PROPOSED AGENDA  
WORK SESSION, MONDAY, MAY 13, 2024, 8:30 A.M. 

REGULAR SESSION, TUESDAY, MAY 14, 2024, 5:30 P.M. 
327 N. Ashley Street - 2nd Floor 

 
 

 

1. Call To Order 
    
2. Invocation 
    
3. Pledge Of Allegiance To The Flag 
    
4. ACCG 2024 Legislative Service Award Presentation 
    
5. Minutes For Approval 
    
  a. Work Session - April 22, 2024 & Regular Session - April 23, 2024  
  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      
6. Appointment 
    
  a. Hospital Authority of Valdosta and Lowndes County  
  Recommended Action:  Board's Pleasure 
  Documents:  
      
7. Public Hearing 
    
  a. Abandonment of a Portion of Race Track Road SE  
  Recommended Action:  Option 1 
  Documents:  
      

  b. REZ-2024-07 Hester Property, Skipper Bridge Road, A portion of (0103 062), 2.5 ac., E-A to R-
A, Well & Septic  

  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      
  c. REZ-2024-08 River Road, 4374 River Road, ~15ac, R-21 to P-D, County Utilities  
  Recommended Action:  Board's Pleasure 
  Documents:  
      

  d. REZ-2024-09 Dasher Grove Subdivision, A portion of (0072 191) ~193ac, R-1 to R-1, R-10 & C-
G, County Utilities  

  Recommended Action:  Board's Pleasure 
  Documents:  
      
  e. REZ-2024-10 Mineola Holding, LLC, 3974 Old US HWY 41 ~0.69ac, R-21 to O-I, County Utilities  
  Recommended Action:  Board's Pleasure 

Option 2 
  Documents:  
      



 

 

  f. REZ-2024-11 Quarterman Estates Ph. 5 4448, 4450, 4454 Whitewater Rd. ~3.66ac,R-1 & R-21 
to R-10, County Utilities  

  Recommended Action:  Approve 
Option 2 

  Documents:  
      
  g. REZ-2024-12 Vicky King 4829 Carter Lane, ~2.98ac, R-A to R-1, Well and Septic  
  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      
8. For Consideration 
    

  a. Hall Road Paving & Drainage, P.I. 0016281 - Transportation Improvement Act (TIA) Project 
Agreement  

  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      
  b. Pronto Consulting, LLC Agreement, Amended Schedule A  
  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      
  c. Bemiss Springs Acceptance of Water and Sewer Infrastructure  
  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      
9. Bid 
    
  a. 2024 Local Maintenance and Improvement Grant (LMIG) Resurfacing Bids  
  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      
10. Reports - County Manager 
    
11. Citizens Wishing To Be Heard - Please State Your Name and Address 
    
12. Adjournment 
    

 



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: Hospital Authority of Valdosta and Lowndes County  
  

 

  

DATE OF MEETING: May 14, 2024   
    

BUDGET IMPACT:  
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

  
(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Appoint/Reappoint A Member  
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: The term of Ms. Shirley Garland will expire June 1, 2024. The name of Ms. 
Shirley Garland, Ms. Elsie Napier, and Ms. Helen Baker, have all been submitted for consideration. The 
Hospital Authority recommends the reappointment of Ms. Shirley Garland. 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1. Appoint/reappoint a member. 

2. Board's Pleasure  
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Board's Pleasure 
  
DEPARTMENT: County Manager                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: Paige Dukes 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 





Print

Date: Board/Agency Applying For:

Hospital Authority of Valdosta and Lowndes County, Georgia 

Last Name

Garland

First Name

Shirley J.

Street Address

  

City/State/Zip

Valdosta, GA 31602

Phone Number

  

Email Address

Occupation

Retired Registered Nurse

Professional Experience

Registered Nurse, Business Owner

Knowledge & Skills

Registered Nurse, Bachelor of Science in Nursing (BSN) from Valdosta State University.  Completed the Valdosta Government 
101 Program.  Completed the Valdosta Citizens Fire Academy.  Completed the Valdosta Citizens Police Academy.

What knowledge or skills do you possess that would contribute to the Board/Agency to which you are requesting to be
appointed?

Please list the Board/Agency that you have been or are currently a member of:

Served on the American Red Cross Board.  Served on the Valdosta Technical College Board.  Member of the Valdosta Lowndes 
Chamber of Commerce.  Hospice Volunteer.

Lowndes County Board/Agency Appointee Information Sheet - Submission #168

Date Submitted: 4/26/2024

4/26/2024



Extra Activities & Community Organizations

Member of the Veterans Widows and Wives Ministry

Please list any extracurricular activities and/or community organizations you are affiliated with.



Print

Date: Board/Agency Applying For:

Hospital Authority of Valdosta and Lowndes County, Georgia 

Last Name

Napier

First Name

Elsie Cason

Street Address

  

City/State/Zip

Valdosta, GA 31601

Phone Number Email Address

Occupation

Retired Deputy Director/District Program Manager, Public Health, South Health District

Professional Experience

1.  Certified Family Nurse Practitioner (for over 25 years) 2.  Administration, Public Health Focus (eight years).

Knowledge & Skills

My knowledge and understanding of Public Health/community needs.  Nursing skills for past 30 years and leadership skills will 
aide duties assigned by Board.  Past experience of Grass Roots of community will compliment the Board.

What knowledge or skills do you possess that would contribute to the Board/Agency to which you are requesting to be
appointed?

Please list the Board/Agency that you have been or are currently a member of:

1. Past partnership for Health Advisory Board  2. TEACH Executive Board. 3. Advisory Board for Department of Family and 
Children Services.  4. South Georgia Nurse Practitioner's Board.

Lowndes County Board/Agency Appointee Information Sheet - Submission #169

Date Submitted: 4/26/2024

4/26/2024



Extra Activities & Community Organizations

Ordained Minister, Pastor, Community Outreach Activities:  clothes closet, meals on wheels program.  Visionary and overseer of 
the "Daughters of Zion Refuge Center".  Visionary and Pastor of TEACH Outreach Ministries/TEACH Inc. Volunteer Chaplain at 
SGMC.  Transitional homes for homeless mothers and children.

Please list any extracurricular activities and/or community organizations you are affiliated with.



Print

Date: Board/Agency Applying For:

Hospital Authority of Valdosta and Lowndes County, Georgia 

Last Name

Baker

First Name

Helen

Street Address

  

City/State/Zip

Valdosta, GA  31601

Phone Number Email Address

Occupation

Retired

Professional Experience

Worked at SGMC for 40 years in a leadership capacity, serving as a Certified Healthcare Environmental Services Professional 
as Director of Customer Services.

Knowledge & Skills

Overseeing the day to day operations of three departments. Managed day to day operations of 150 employees. Prepared 
annual budgets for three departments. Established policy and procedures for departmental and personnel operations. Computer 
skills and ordering of supplies. A working knowledge and understanding of personnel policies and procedures, the budgetary 
process and a good working relationship with members of the community.

What knowledge or skills do you possess that would contribute to the Board/Agency to which you are requesting to be
appointed?

Lowndes County Board/Agency Appointee Information Sheet - Submission #170

Date Submitted: 4/26/2024

4/26/2024



Please list the Board/Agency that you have been or are currently a member of:

I have been a member of the following board/agency: Rising Star United Way Campaign; United Way Board of Directors; 
Leadership Lowndes.

Currently: Pinevale High School Alumni Board of Directors; Christian Love Bible Baptist Church Board of Directors.

Extra Activities & Community Organizations

Christian Love Bible Baptist Church Officer - CFO. Community Partners with Pinevale Elementary School and Maceo Horne 
Alternative School.

Please list any extracurricular activities and/or community organizations you are affiliated with.



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: Abandonment of a Portion of Race Track Road SE  
  

 

  

DATE OF MEETING: May 14, 2024   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: N/A 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

  
(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Abandonment of a Portion of Race Track Road SE  
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: The Lowndes County Engineering Department received a request to abandon a 
portion of Race Track Road SE. On March 12, 2024, the Lowndes County Board of Commissioners determined 
the subject portion of Race Track Road SE has ceased to be used by the public to the extent that no 
substantial public purpose is served by it.  
 
Notice has been published and given to the adjoining property owner as required by the Georgia statue. 
 
A proposed Resolution abandoning the subject portion of Race Track Road SE is attached.  
  
  
OPTIONS: 1. Adopt Resolution abandoning a portion of Race Track Road SE. 

2. Redirect. 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Option 1 
  
DEPARTMENT: Engineering                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: Chad McLeod 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 



RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, Lowndes County received a request to abandon a portion of Race Track Road 
SE, as more fully described on the attached plats; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to OCGA § 32-7-2(b)(1), the Board of Commissioners has determined 
the sections of the county road system highlighted in yellow on the attached plats have 
ceased to be used by the public to the extent that no substantial public purpose is served by 
them; and

WHEREAS, as required by OCGA § 32-7-2(b)(1), Lowndes County has given notice to 
property owners located thereon; and

WHEREAS, as also required by OCGA § 32-7-2(b)(1), Lowndes County published notice of 
such determination in the newspaper in which sheriff’s advertisements for the county are 
published once a week for a period of two weeks; and

WHEREAS, Lowndes County has also published notice that the Board of Commissioners 
will hold a public hearing at 5:30 PM on May 14, 2024, at the Lowndes County 
Administration Building for the purpose of determining whether to declare the subject 
portions of the subject road abandoned; and

WHEREAS, as required by OCGA § 32-7-2(b)(1), the Board of Commissioners has held a 
public hearing on the issue;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the
sections of right of way of Race Track Road SE highlighted in yellow on the attached plats 
be and are hereby declared abandoned, such that such sections of right of way shall no 
longer be part of the County Road system and the rights of the public in and to such sections 
of road as a public road shall cease.

SO RESOLVED this 14th day of May 2024.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF LOWNDES COUNTY

BY:  
Bill Slaughter 
Chairman

ATTEST: 
Belinda Lovern 
County Clerk



I, Laurie Gay, Publisher, do hereby certify that the Legal Advertisement(s) for

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

was/were published in _____________________________________________________________________ 

on ______________________________________________________________________________________

Subscribed and sworn to me, in the County of Lowndes in the State of Georgia on this

___________________________ day of _______________________________________________________

AFFIDAVIT

201 N. Troup Street 31601 / P.O. Box 968 (31603)
Valdosta, GA / (229) 244-1880

www.sgaonline.com

____________________________________________
Notary Public Signature

___________________________________________
Publisher





 

 

 

Langdale Vallotton, LLP        William C. Nijem, Jr. 
1007 N. Patterson Street | Valdosta, Georgia 31601     Direct Dial: (229) 588-7118 

Tel: (229) 244-5400 | www.langdalevallotton.com    bnijem@langdalelaw.com 

 

LV File No. 221409/BN 

 

February 15, 2024 

 

Mike Fletcher        Via Electronic Mail 

County Engineer 

Lowndes County, Georgia 

Email:  mfletcher@lowndescounty.com  

 

 RE: Petition for Road Abandonment 

  Racetrack Rd. SE/County Road #310 

 

Dear Mike, 

 

Our firm represents Southern Gateway, LLC, which owns property surrounding all sides 

of Racetrack Rd. SE/County Road #310.  Southern Gateway, LLC is requesting that Racetrack Rd. 

SE/County Road #310 lying West of Madison Highway be abandoned by the County and conveyed 

to Southern Gateway, LLC.  For your reference, I am attaching a recorded subdivision plat showing 

the portion of Racetrack Road SE/County Road #310 sought to be abandoned and conveyed to 

Southern Gateway, LLC.   

 

As you know, Racetrack Rd. SE/County Road #310 is a stub-out from Madison Highway 

which runs West and dead-ends into remaining property of Southern Gateway, LLC.  As a dead-

end road, the road has ceased to be used by the public to the extent that no substantial purpose is 

served bv it.  With respect to the Southern Gateway, LLC property, the road is not needed as there 

are other access points from the Southern Gateway, LLC property onto Madison Highway. In 

addition, its removal from the county road system is in the best interest of the County because the 

County continues to maintain a road that serves no purpose to the public  There have also been 

past instances of dumping and trespass because of the road remaining open, and abandoning the 

road will allow the property owner to install a gate to prevent this from occurring in the future.   

 

Please let us know if there is anything further needed from our office to address this request.  

I am also copying Jeff Lovell, as his firm is assisting with engineering on the property.  Once you 

have the public hearing set for this matter, please let us know the dates of the scheduled meetings 

as well.  We appreciate your assistance with this matter.   

  

http://www.langdalevallotton.com/
mailto:bnijem@langdalelaw.com
mailto:mfletcher@lowndescounty.com


 

 

 

 

Very truly yours, 

 
 

William C. Nijem, Jr. 

 

Encl. Subdivision Plat 

 

cc:   Jeff Lovell (via email) 

 Mike Nacarato (via email) 

 Teresa Nacarato (via email) 

 George Sassser (via email) 



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: REZ-2024-07 Hester Property, Skipper Bridge Road, A 
portion of (0103 062), 2.5 ac., E-A to R-A, Well & Septic  

  
 

  

DATE OF MEETING: May 14, 2024   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: N/A 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

  
(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: REZ-2024-07 Hester Property, Skipper Bridge Road, A 
portion of (0103 062), 2.5 ac., E-A to R-A, Well & Septic 

 
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: This request represents a change in zoning on a portion of the subject property 
from E-A (Estate Agricultural) zoning to R-A (Residential Agricultural) zoning.  The general motivation in this 
case is for the applicant to subdivide the property into a conforming lot for an individual residence. The 
subject property possesses road frontage on Skipper Bridge Road and Franklinville Road, both locally 
maintained County Roads, and is within the Rural Service Area and Agricultural/Forestry Character Area.   
  
The TRC analyzed the request, the standards governing the exercise of zoning power set forth in 10.01.05 of 
the ULDC, and factors most relevant to this application, including the neighboring zoning patterns and existing 
population density, the development potential based on well and septic criteria, the potential environmental 
impacts, and therefore recommends approval of the request for R-A zoning.  
 
The GLPC heard the request at their April meeting, along with comments from the applicant who spoke in 
support of the request, and voted unanimously (8-0) to recommend approval. 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1) Approve 

2) Approve with Conditions 
3) Table 
4) Deny 

  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 
  
DEPARTMENT: Planning/Zoning                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: JD Dillard 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 













LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: REZ-2024-08 River Road, 4374 River Road, ~15ac, R-21 to P-
D, County Utilities  

  
 

  

DATE OF MEETING: May 14, 2024   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: N/A 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

  
(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: REZ-2024-08 River Road, 4374 River Road, ~15ac, R-21 
to P-D, County Utilities 

 
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: This request represents a change in zoning on the subject property from R-21 
(Medium Density Residential) to P-D (Planned Development) zoning to develop a 54-lot subdivision. In 2022, a 
request to rezone the property from R-21 to R-A was denied by the LCBOC (3-2). The subject property 
possesses road frontage on River Road, a major collector County Road, and is within the Urban Service Area 
and Suburban Character Area on the Future Land Use map.    
  
The TRC analyzed the request, the standards governing the exercise of zoning power set forth in 10.01.05 of 
the ULDC, and factors most relevant to this application, including the rural residential character of the area, 
the existing low-density land uses and zoning patterns, the availability of County utilities, the topography of 
the subject property, and the proposed site plan, and therefore recommends approval of the request for P-D 
with the following conditions: 
  
TRC Conditions: 

1. Duplexes (Two-family dwellings) are not allowed 
2. Side yard setbacks on all lots – 8’ 
3. Lot 42 and 54 driveway access from Western property line only 
4. When the dwellings are within sixteen (16) feet of each other, fences are not allowed to be 

constructed in the side yards between them  
5. Accessory structures allowed per lot: No more than 2 structures totaling no more than 400sf 

combined, located in the rear yard only, and no less than 5’ from the side and rear property lines 
6. Landscaping/Buffering – Consistent with ULDC 4.07.00, a landscaped buffer of a minimum of four (4) 

shade trees per 100 linear feet shall be planted around the North, East, and West exterior boundaries, 
and the Western lot line of Lot 55 (interior green space) 

7. No on-street parking allowed 

  
At the GLPC meeting, the applicant spoke in favor of the request, citing population growth, economic 



 

 

challenges, and affordable workforce housing needs in the area. No one spoke in opposition to the request, 
though the GLPC had ample discussion regarding the TRC recommended conditions and considerations, the 
addition of privacy fencing, the proposed setbacks, and the ingress/egress for the development. Ultimately, 
the GLPC voted (7-1) to recommend Approval with the modified Conditions below: 
 
GLPC Conditions: 

1. Duplexes (Two-family dwellings) are not allowed 
2. Side yard setbacks on all lots – 6’ 
3. Lot 42 and 54 driveway access from Western property line only 
4. When the dwellings are within sixteen (16) feet of each other, fences may be constructed in the side 

yard if they begin and extend out from the rear corner of the building. 
5. Accessory structures allowed per lot: No more than 2 structures totaling no more than 400sf 

combined, located in the rear yard only, and no less than 5’ from the side and rear property lines 
6. Landscaping/Buffering – Consistent with ULDC 4.07.00, a landscaped buffer of a minimum of four (4) 

shade trees per 100 linear feet shall be planted around the North, East, and West exterior boundaries, 
and the Western lot line of Lot 55 (interior green space) 

7. No on-street parking allowed 

 
Additional considerations include: 

1. This is the first substantive attempt to develop a suburban density neighborhood that utilizes water 
and sewer in the River Road community.   

2. Setting a minimum lot size greater than what is currently depicted to allow for the subject property to 
better fit into the existing community, e.g. 8,000 sqft lots 

3. Additional emergency ingress/egress be added through the western stub out along River Rd., or a 
boulevard style entrance that is approved by both County Engineering and Fire/Resuce 

4. Existing houses on R-21 lots connection to County Utilities 
5. The proposed location and design of the Cluster Mailbox Unit 
6. Providing additional parking spaces to accommodate guests, visitors, and the use of the green space 

(Table 6.01.03(A) = 20 spaces) 
7. Previous development activity of other PD subdivisions in North Lowndes County related to side yard 

setbacks  
8. Utilize a portion of the central greenspace for a shared bus stop area (Covered, Lights, etc.)  
9. Providing a future ROW stub-out to the east and/or west to accommodate for future development. 

10. Access and utilization of the stormwater detention/greenspace area as an amenity for the 
neighborhood (trails, picnic shelter, etc.) 

11. The setbacks for Lot #1 need to be adjusted e.g. Setback/Zoning/Property Line Adjustment (Northern 
Line is Exterior).   

12. The current site plan exceeds staff’s recommended minimums for front yard setbacks: Front yard 
setbacks on all lots – 35’ from centerline of street, and Secondary Front yard setbacks for Corner lots – 
28’ from centerline of street (Lots 41, 42, 54) 

 
 
 



 

 

Setbacks from other PD subdivisions in North Lowndes County: 
Coventry Villas (Mulligan Rd) – 8’ side, 15’ front, 15’/30’ rear (Rezoned: 2018) 
Coventry (Mulligan Rd) – 8’ side, 15’ front, 15’/30’ rear (Rezoned: 2016) 
Barrington (Old Pine Rd) – 5’ side, 15’ front, 30’ rear (Rezoned: 2012-2013) 
Glen Laurel (Old Pine Rd) – 6’ side, 20’ front, 20/30’ rear (Rezoned: 2010) 
Nelson Hill (Val Del Rd) – 5’ side, 16’ front, 15’/25’ rear (Rezoned: 2006) 
Northlake (N Valdosta Rd) – 6-8’ side, 30’ front, 30’ rear (Developed: 2006-2007) 
Hamilton Pointe (Guest Rd) – 6’ side, 30’ front, 15’ rear (Developed: 1995-1996) 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1) Approve 

2) Approve with Conditions 
3) Table 
4) Deny 

  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Board's Pleasure 
  
DEPARTMENT: Planning/Zoning                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: JD Dillard 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 







N0°33'37"E
237.90'

N88°16'52"W
125.24'

N2°21'03"E
287.99'

N
87

°3
3'

50
"W

50
.0

0'

S2°21'03"W
288.62'

N88°16'52"W
167.85'

N7°43'27"E
206.12'

N20°47'21"E

90.06'

N
87

°3
3'

50
"W

44
.2

6'

S8°00'55"W
1621.23'

S78°14'51"E
551.58'

N0°32'40"E
1179.29'

R
IV

E
R

 R
O

A
D

 (8
0'

 R
/W

) M
IN

O
R

 C
O

LL
E

C
TO

R

43
5000SF

42
8184SF

55
20268SF

44
5000SF

46
5000SF

45
5000SF

47
5000SF 48

5000SF 49
5000SF 50

5000SF 51
5000SF 52

5000SF 53
5000SF 54

8175SF

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

L=31.00'
R=20.0'

N
88

°1
6'

52
"W

22
.7

0'

L=
73.05'

R=
50.0 '

S8°00'55"W
43.66'

S8
2°

11
'0

1"
E

99
.3

2'

N0°32'40"E
7.59'

N0°33'37"E
71.30' S7°14'42"W

50.35' S8°00'55"W
50.00' S8°00'55"W

50.00' S8°00'55"W
50.00' S8°00'55"W

50.00' S8°00'55"W
50.00' S8°00'55"W

50.00' S8°00'55"W
50.00' S8°00'55"W

50.00' S8°00'55"W
50.00' S8°00'55"W

50.00' S8°00'55"W
50.00'

N62°57'35"E
9.16'

L=140.53'

R=129.0'

N0°32'40"E
476.76'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

S8°00'55"W
81.70' L=43

.6
5'

R=20
.0

'

N
62°57'35"E
83.70'

STORM WATER
DETENTION AREA

AND GREEN SPACE

GREEN SPACE

30' BUILDING
SETBACK LINE (TYP)

56
177798SF

1
6287SF

2
5426SF

3
5021SF

4
5000SF

5
5001SF

6
5000SF

7
5000SF

8
5000SF

9
5000SF

10
5000SF

11
5000SF

12
5000SF

13
5000SF

14
5000SF

15
5455SF

16
6544SF

17
8426SF

18
6915SF

19
5687SF

20
5000SF

21
7439SF

22
17820SF

23
17883SF

24
7449SF

25
5000SF

26
5000SF

27
5000SF

28
5000SF

29
5000SF

30
5000SF

31
5000SF

32
5000SF

33
5000SF

34
5000SF

35
5000SF

36
5000SF

37
5000SF

38
5731SF

39
8228SF

40
18343SF

41
8659SF

S0°32'40"W
525.96'

N
78

°1
4'

51
"W

55
1.

58
'

N8°00'55"E
147.34'

N
62°57'35"E
0.52'

N
62°57'35"E
225.66'

N
62°57'35"E
102.62'

N
62°57'35"E
50.00'

N
62°57'35"E
30.00'

N
62°57'35"E
66.38'

N
62°57'35"E
78.43'

N
62°57'35"E
35.23'

N
88

°1
6'

52
"W

12
5.

24
'

L=48.22'

R=129.0 '

S18°26'00"E
5.39'

S8
9°

26
'2

3"
E

11
6.

55
'

N0°33'37"E
50.00'

S18°26'00"E
20.90'

L=31.20 '

R=179.0 '

S8
9°

26
'2

3"
E

10
2.

21
'

N0°33'37"E
50.00'

L=28.14'
R=179.0'

S0°33'37"W
21.98'

S8
9°

26
'2

3"
E

10
0.

00
'

N0°33'37"E
50.00'

S0°33'37"W
50.00'

S8
9°

26
'2

3"
E

10
0.

00
'

N0°33'37"E
50.00'

S0°33'37"W
37.90'

S0°32'40"W
12.13'

S8
9°

27
'2

0"
E

10
0.

00
'

N0°32'40"E
12.10'

N0°33'37"E
37.90'

S0°32'40"W
50.00'

S8
9°

27
'2

0"
E

10
0.

00
'

N0°32'40"E
50.00'

S0°32'40"W
50.00'

S8
9°

27
'2

0"
E

10
0.

00
'

N0°32'40"E
50.00'

S0°32'40"W
50.00'

S8
9°

27
'2

0"
E

10
0.

00
'

N0°32'40"E
50.00'

S0°32'40"W
50.00'

S8
9°

27
'2

0"
E

10
0.

00
'

N0°32'40"E
50.00'

S0°32'40"W
50.00'

S8
9°

27
'2

0"
E

10
0.

00
'

N0°32'40"E
50.00'

S0°32'40"W
50.00'

S8
9°

27
'2

0"
E

10
0.

00
'

N0°32'40"E
50.00'

S0°32'40"W
50.00'

S8
9°

27
'2

0"
E

10
0.

00
'

N0°32'40"E
50.00'

S0°32'40"W
50.00'

S8
9°

27
'2

0"
E

10
0.

00
'

N0°32'40"E
50.00'

S0°32'40"W
50.00'

S8
9°

27
'2

0"
E

10
0.

00
'

N0°32'40"E
50.00'

S0°32'40"W
22.20'

L=25.01'
R=179.0'

S8
1°

27
'0

6"
E

10
2.

74
'

N0°32'40"E
61.43'

L=44.97'R=179.0'

S6
7°

03
'20

"E
12

2.
77

'

N0°32'40"E
75.76'

L=44.97'
R=179.0 '

S5
2°

39
'35

"E
13

0.4
2'

N
62°57'35"E
35.23'

N0°32'40"E
54.02'

L=44.97'

R=179.0'

S38°15'50"E

105.44'

N
62°57'35"E
78.43'

L=35.06'
R=179.0'

S62°57'35"W

11.02'

S27°02'25"E

100.00'

N
62°57'35"E
66.38'

S62°57'35"W

50.00'

S27°02'25"E100.00'

N
62°57'35"E
50.00'N27°02'25"W

100.00'

S62°57'35"W
1.84'

L=
37.46'

R
=

70.0'

S3°37'09"W
127.63'

N
62°57'35"E
102.62'

L=
38

.8
9'

R=
70

.0
'

S35°27'01"W
298.05'

N
62°57'35"E
225.66'

L=38.8
9'

R=70.0
'

S67°16'53"W

127.78'

S8°00'55"W
225.88' N

62°57'35"E
0.52'

N8°00'55"E
1.72'

S8°00'55"W
102.80'

L=37.55'
R=70.0 '

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

N8°00'55"E
50.00'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

N8°00'55"E
50.00'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

N8°00'55"E
50.00'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

N8°00'55"E
50.00'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

N8°00'55"E
50.00'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

N8°00'55"E
50.00'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

N8°00'55"E
50.00'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

N8°00'55"E
50.00'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

N8°00'55"E
50.00'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

N8°00'55"E
50.00'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

N8°00'55"E
50.00'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

N8°00'55"E
50.00'

S8°00'55"W
50.00'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

N8°00'55"E
50.00'

S8°00'55"W
68.29'

S8
1°

59
'0

5"
E

10
0.

00
'

N8°00'55"E
23.64'

L=21.97'
R=100.0'

S8°00'55"W
103.12'

S6
9°

23
'59

"E
10

4.
92

'

L=41.67'

R=100.0'

N
88

°1
6'

52
"W

67
.3

8'

N7°43'27"E
206.12'

N20°47'21"E

90.06'

N
87

°3
3'

50
"W

44
.2

6'

S8°00'55"W
323.80'

S45
°31

'35
"E

14
8.6

7'

L=
41.67'

R
=

100.0'

N
87

°3
3'

50
"W

44
.2

6'

N
88

°1
6'

52
"W

10
0.

47
'

S21°39'11"E

117.88'

L=
4 0 .79'

R
=

1 0 0.0 '

S8
8°

16
'5

2"
E

9.
35

'L=38.45'
R=20.0'

N18°26'00"W9.16'

L=65.80 'R=179.0 '

20' BUILDING
SETBACK LINE (TYP)

6'
 B

.S
.L

. (
TY

P)

6'
 B

.S
.L

. (
TY

P)

20' BUILDINGSETBACK LINE (TYP)

20' BUILDINGSETBACK LINE (TYP)

6'
 B

.S
.L

. (
TY

P)

6'
 B

.S
.L

. (
TY

P)

20' BUILDINGSETBACK LINE (TYP)

30' BUILDINGSETBACK LINE (TYP)

6'
 B

.S
.L

. (
TY

P)

6'
 B

.S
.L

. (
TY

P)

50
'

26
'

22
'

50
'

26
'

22
'

20' BUILD
IN

G

SETBACK LIN
E (TYP)

6' B.S.L. (T
YP)

6' B.S.L. (T
YP)

20' BUILD
IN

G

SETBACK LIN
E (TYP)

4' WIDE PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE CONCRETE PATH

4' WIDE PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE CONCRETE PATH

C4

00-000

SITE PLAN

SCALE:

PROJ. No.:

DATE:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DWG NAME:

SHEET NO.

PROJECT:

CLIENT:

DRAWING TITLE:

van der watt

engineering, llc

84 Bent Oak Circle,

 Thomasville, GA 31757-9502

Tel: (229) 551-0363

Fax: (229) 227-6593

E-mail: jj@vdwengineers.com

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS

* *

R

EG I ST ERED

E NG I N E E R

No. 030867
PROFESSIONAL

G

E
O R G

I

A

J
O

HAN  VAN  DER  W

A
T

T

C COPYRIGHT 2014

REVISIONS

NO. DATE INITIALS DESCRIPTION

THIS DRAWING IS THE PROPERTY OF VAN DER WATT ENGINEERING, LLC.
AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION.

DOCUMENTS OF PUBLIC RECORD MAY BE COPIED BUT NOT ALTERED.

.dwg

CERT. OF AUTH. GA # PEF004845

jj

jj

CONCEPTUAL
SITE PLAN

MR. CLINT JOYNER

PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL
SUBDIVISION

4374 RIVER ROAD
VALDOSTA, GA 31605

VALDOSTA, GA 31604

1" = 60' 26 APR 2024

 REFER TO SHEET C1
FOR GENERAL NOTES

R

www.Georgia811.com

0 60 120

GRAPHIC SCALE

SCALE: 1"= 60'

PRELIMINARY PLAT NOTES:
1. THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT IS LOCATED IN VALDOSTA, LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA 31602 AND IS

SURROUNDED BY RESIDENTIAL LAND. THE PROPOSED PROJECT CONSISTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE
INFRASTRUCTURE FOR 54 SINGLE RESIDENTIAL LOTS AND 2 GREEN SPACE AREAS.

2. AREA OF PROPERTY: ±14.90 ACRES.
3. PROPERTY IS LOCATED ON LAND LOTS #132 AND #133, 11TH LAND DISTRICT, RIVER ROAD, VALDOSTA,

GEORGIA 31602. LAT: 30.9504° N; LONG:  83.2484° W.
4. CURRENT PROPERTY USE: VACANT LAND.
5. CURRENT ZONING: R-21 MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL.
6. PROPOSED ZONING: PD PLANNED DEVELOPMENT.
7. BUILDING SETBACKS: FRONT = 45' FROM STREET CENTERLINE, REAR = 20' FROM PROPERTY LINE,

SIDES = 6' FROM PROPERTY LINE, SIDES OF CORNER LOTS = 36' FROM STREET CENTERLINE.
8. AS THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT IS WITHIN THE CONNECTION REQUIREMENTS FOUND IN ULDC

CHAPTER - 6.03.03 FOR COUNTY WATER AND THE CONNECTION REQUIREMENTS FOR COUNTY SEWER AS
FOUND IN ULDC CHAPTER - 6.03.04 ANY FUTURE DEVELOPMENT WILL BE REQUIRED TO CONNECT TO BOTH
WATER AND SEWER SERVICES

9. SANITARY SEWER WILL BE PROVIDED BY MEANS OF AN E/ONE SYSTEM WHICH WILL BE CONNECTED TO
THE EXISTING SYSTEM IN CAT CREEK ROAD.

10. WATER WILL BE SUPPLIED BY CONNECTING TO THE EXISTING WATER MAIN IN RIVER ROAD.
11. ALL WORK SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOWNDES COUNTY STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.
12. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE COUNTY ENGINEER AT LEAST 24 HOURS PRIOR TO THE BEGINNING OF

CONSTRUCTION.
13. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE LOWNDES COUNTY UTILITIES DEPARTMENT AT LEAST 24 HOURS PRIOR

TO ANY CONNECTION TO THE LOWNDES COUNTY UTILITY SYSTEM.
14. ALL EXTENSIONS AND ADDITIONS TO THE COUNTY UTILITY SYSTEM SHALL BE PERFORMED BY A GEORGIA

LICENSED UTILITY CONTRACTOR.
15. A MINIMUM OF 18” OF VERTICAL AND 10' OF HORIZONTAL SEPARATION SHALL BE MAINTAINED BETWEEN

ALL UTILITIES.
16. ANY CROSS CONNECTION TO THE LOWNDES COUNTY WATER SYSTEM IS PROHIBITED.
17. ALL T'S AND BENDS SHALL BE DUCTILE IRON.
18.  FUTURE DEVELOPMENT WILL BE GOVERNED BY THE STANDARDS ASSOCIATED WITH SUBURBAN DENSITY

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT (R-10) ZONING.
19.  I CERTIFY THERE ARE NO DWELLING, ACCESSORY BUILDINGS, SEPTIC SYSTEMS, WELLS, SIGNS OR

SWIMMING POOLS LOCATED WITHIN THIRTY (30) FEET OR THE APPLICABLE ZONING SETBACK LINE
WHICHEVER IS GREATER FROM ANY PROPERTY LINE ON THE SITE (10.02.01(A)(4)).

20.PROJECT OWNER / PERMITTEE / 24 HOUR CONTACT:
     OWNER: MR. CLINT JOYNER
     231 NORTHSIDE DRIVE
     VALDOSTA, GA 31602
     CONTACT: MR. CLINT JOYNER
     TEL : (229) 251-2990
21.LOWNDES COUNTY ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT CONTACT INFORMATION
     MIKE FLETCHER, P.E., COUNTY ENGINEER
     327 N. ASHLEY STREET
     VALDOSTA, GA 31601
     (229) 671-2421
22.LOWNDES COUNTY UTILITY DEPARTMENT
     CONTACT INFORMATION
     STEVE STALVEY, UTILITIES DIRECTOR
     327 N. ASHLEY STREET
     VALDOSTA, GA 31601
     (229) 671-2501

2° SLOPE

2.00' 11.00'
22.00'

TYPICAL ROAD SECTION LOCAL ROADS IN
RESIDENTIAL AREAS WITH 24" MIAMI CURBS

SCALE: 1" = 5'

50.00'

ASPHALTIC CONCRETE: 11
2" (165 lbs./sq.yd.  OF

12.5 mm SUPERPAVE - LEVEL A ON 7.5" THICK
GRADED LIMEROCK BASE COURSE

2° SLOPE

11.00'
22.00'

2.00'

50.00'

24" MIAMI CURB 24" MIAMI CURB

2% SLOPE

7.00'

SHOULDER

4' WIDE
CONCRETE
SIDEWALK

2% SLOPE

7.00'

SHOULDER

4' WIDE
CONCRETE
SIDEWALK

NOTES REGARDING LOTS ADJACENT TO WETLANDS:
(WILL BE REQUIRED ON FSD)
1. FOR ALL NEWLY PLATTED LOTS THAT ARE ADJACENT TO WETLANDS, FLOODPLAIN, DRAINAGE DITCHES, DETENTION

PONDS, OR ANY AREAS FORMERLY DELINEATED AS ANY OF THE ABOVE, THE FOLLOWING SHALL BE PROVIDED:
a. A BENCHMARK SHALL BE ESTABLISHED AT THE FRONT PROPERTY CORNER FOR EVERY LOT.
b. A HIGH WATER MARK OR HYDROLOGIC ANALYSIS SHALL BE REQUIRED TO ESTABLISH THE 100-YEAR FLOOD

ELEVATION FOR THE LOT.
c. A MINIMUM FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION SHALL BE ESTABLISHED FOR THE LOT AT A MINIMUM OF TWO (2) FEET

ABOVE THE ESTABLISHED 100-YEAR FLOOD ELEVATION FOR THE LOT.
d. PRIOR TO ANY INSPECTIONS BEING PERFORMED AND SIGNED-OFF ON, A REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR SHALL

CERTIFY THAT THE PROPOSED FINISHED FLOOR OF THE BUILDING IS AT OR ABOVE THE MINIMUM FINISHED FLOOR
ELEVATION ESTABLISHED ON THE FINAL PLAT.

e. A MINIMUM OF TWO (2) SOIL BORINGS, ONE ON EACH SIDE OF THE PROPOSED FOUNDATION OF THE BUILDING, SHALL
BE PROVIDED TO DETERMINE THE SEASONAL HIGH WATER TABLE.

f. IF THE SEASONAL HIGH WATER TABLE IS LESS THAN ONE (1) FOOT FROM THE BOTTOM OF THE FOOTER ELEVATION, A
SUBSURFACE DRAINAGE SYSTEM IS REQUIRED TO BE INSTALLED. THIS SYSTEM SHALL BE DESIGNED BY THE
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER.

NOTES REGARDING HOMES, PARKING AND GREEN SPACES:
1. PROPOSED HOME SIZE = ±1,200 TO 1,500 SQUARE FEET, WITH 1- OR 2-CAR GARAGES.
2. MINIMUM LOT SIZE = 5,000 S.F.
3. AVERAGE LOT SIZE = 6,252 S.F.
4. AVERAGE LOT WIDTH = 50 FT.
5. TOTAL NUMBER OF RESIDENTIAL LOTS = 54, WHICH IS 3.62 LOTS PER ACRE.
6. PARKING WILL BE PROVIDED FOR 2 CARS PER HOUSE, EXCLUDING THE GARAGE.
7. THE TOTAL AREA OF THE RESIDENTIAL LOTS IS 7.75 ACRES, WHICH IS 52.0% OF THE UNIMPROVED TRACT.
8. THE GREEN SPACE LOT #55 IS 0.47 ACRES, WHICH IS 3.1% OF THE UNIMPROVED TRACT.
9. THE STORM WATER DETENTION AND GREEN SPACE LOT #56 IS 4.08 ACRES, WHICH IS 27.4% OF THE UNIMPROVED TRACT.
10. THE TOTAL AREA OF THE ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY IS 2.60 ACRES, WHICH IS 17.5% OF THE UNIMPROVED TRACT.
11. THE TOTAL PERCENTAGE OF GREEN AREA IS 30.5%.

AutoCAD SHX Text
) OF 









LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: REZ-2024-09 Dasher Grove Subdivision, A portion of (0072 
191) ~193ac, R-1 to R-1, R-10 & C-G, County Utilities  

  
 

  

DATE OF MEETING: May 14, 2024   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: N/A 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

  
(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: REZ-2024-09 Dasher Grove Subdivision, A portion of 
(0072 191) ~193ac, R-1 to R-1, R-10 & C-G, County Utilities 

 
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: This request represents a change in zoning on the subject property from R-1 
(Low Density Residential) zoning to R-1 (Low Density Residential) on ~49ac, R-10 (Suburban Density 
Residential) on ~130ac and C-G (Commercial General) zoning on ~32ac abutting Val Del Road.  The general 
motivation in this case is for the applicant to continue the development of the adjoining Grove Pointe 
Subdivision, per the master plan from 2002. The subject property possesses road frontage on Val Del Road 
and Dasher Grove Road, a major collector and local County Road respectively, and is within the Urban Service 
Area and Suburban Character Area.   
  
The TRC analyzed the request, the standards governing the exercise of zoning power set forth in 10.01.05 of 
the ULDC, and factors most relevant to this application, including the adjoining suburban land uses and zoning 
patterns, the various wetland locations, the availability of County utilities, and the future road improvements 
to Val Del, and therefore recommends approval of the request for R-1, R-10 and C-G zoning as depicted on the 
Dasher Grove Conceptual Layout dated 3/21/2024 with the following conditions: 

1. All lots shall front interior roads. 
2. The owner of the subject property shall provide public road vehicular access to and from Val-Del Road 

within 120 days of the recording on the real estate records of the Clerk of the Superior Court of 
Lowndes County of a plat or plats of a portion or portions of the subject property which include a total 
of 120 or more residential lots. 

 
At the GLPC meeting, two members of the Grove Pointe Subdivision spoke in opposition, mainly raising 
concerns regarding traffic and potential impacts on the existing amenities for the residents. The applicants 
spoke in favor of the request, and agreed that the TRC conditions were appropriate, though they would prefer 
to increase the lot count requirement of Condition 2 in order to make the overall project viable.  
 
The GLPC then discussed the concerns raised by the residents and the applicants, along with traffic concerns 
along Val Del, before making an initial motion to recommend denial, which failed (2-6), and ultimately 



 

 

motioning to recommend Approval with Conditions, and increasing the lot count of Condition 2 to 200 lots, 
which passed (6-2). 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1) Approve 

2) Approve with Conditions 
3) Table 
4) Deny 

  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Board's Pleasure 
  
DEPARTMENT: Planning/Zoning                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: JD Dillard 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 













LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: REZ-2024-10 Mineola Holding, LLC, 3974 Old US HWY 41 
~0.69ac, R-21 to O-I, County Utilities  

  
 

  

DATE OF MEETING: May 14, 2024   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: N/A 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

  
(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: REZ-2024-10 Mineola Holding, LLC, 3974 Old US HWY 
41 ~0.69ac, R-21 to O-I, County Utilities 

 
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: This request represents a change in zoning on the subject property from R-21 
(Medium Density Residential) zoning to O-I (Office Institutional) zoning.  The general motivation in this case is 
for the applicant to develop the property with compatible O-I uses. The subject property possesses road 
frontage on Old US HWY 41 and Kelly Way, an arterial and local County Road respectively, and is within the 
Urban Service Area, Old US 41 Corridor Overlay, and Suburban Character Area.   
  
The TRC analyzed the request, the standards governing the exercise of zoning power set forth in 10.01.05 of 
the ULDC, and factors most relevant to this application, including the adjoining suburban and commercial land 
uses and zoning patterns, the availability of County utilities, the existing landscaping and buffering, and 
therefore recommends approval of the request for O-I zoning, with one condition; the existing vegetation 
along Kelly Way and the northeastern property line shall remain undisturbed, and if damaged during 
development, shall be replaced in accordance with Section 4.07.06 of the ULDC. 
 
Table 4.07.06(C). Buffer Area Standards. 
 Proposed Land Use  Adjacent Zoning district  Minimum Buffer Area* 
 Intensive Service or 

Industrial 
E-A, R-A, CON, R-1, R-21, R-10, 
 MAZ Residential  

40 feet* 

 Multi-family, 
Commercial or 
 Mixed-use areas 

E-A, R-A, CON, R-1, R-21, R-10, 
 MAZ Residential 

30 feet* 

 Office or Institutional E-A, R-A, CON, R-1, R-21, R-10, 
 MAZ Residential  

20 feet* 

 * The installation of a 6’ to 8’ opaque fence enables the buffer area to be 
decreased by 50% and the buffer landscaping requirement to be decreased by 
25%. For example, with the installation of an 8’ fence a 30’ buffer area with 4 
shade trees and 25 shrubs per 100 linear feet can be reduced to 15 feet with 3 
shade trees and 19 shrubs per 100 linear feet. 



 

 

 
 
The GLPC heard the request at their April meeting, and from the applicant's representative who spoke in favor 
of the request while acknowledging the TRC's recommended condition, before voting unanimously (8-0) to 
recommend Approval with the Condition as stated. 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1) Approve 

2) Approve with Conditions 
3) Table 
4) Deny 

  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Board's Pleasure 
Option 2 
  
DEPARTMENT: Planning/Zoning                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: JD Dillard 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 













LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: REZ-2024-11 Quarterman Estates Ph. 5 4448, 4450, 4454 
Whitewater Rd. ~3.66ac,R-1 & R-21 to R-10, County Utilities  

  
 

  

DATE OF MEETING: May 14, 2024   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: N/A 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

  
(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: REZ-2024-11 Quarterman Estates Ph. 5 4448, 4450, 
4454 Whitewater Rd. ~3.66ac,R-1 & R-21 to R-10, County Utilities 

 
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: This request represents a change in zoning on the subject property from R-1 
(Low Density Residential) and R-21 (Medium Density Residential) zoning to R-10 (Suburban Density 
Residential) zoning.  The general motivation in this case is for the applicant to unify the zoning for the 
Quarterman Estates Subdivision. The subject property possesses road frontage on Whitewater Road, a major 
collector County Road, and is within the Urban Service Area and Suburban Character Area.   
  
The subject parcels were originally rezoned in 2005 and 2006 to R-15 zoning, which was replaced with R-21 
and R-1 zonings in 2006 with the adoption of the ULDC and the updated zoning classifications. 
  
The TRC analyzed the request, the standards governing the exercise of zoning power set forth in 10.01.05 of 
the ULDC, and factors most relevant to this application, including the adjoining suburban land uses and zoning 
patterns, the availability of County utilities, and the wetland and recharge areas, and therefore recommends 
approval of the request for R-10 zoning. 
 
At the GLPC meeting, the applicant's representative spoke in favor of the request, and hearing no opposition, 
voted unanimously (8-0) to recommend approval. 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1) Approve 

2) Approve with Conditions 
3) Table 
4) Deny 

  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 
Option 2 
  
DEPARTMENT: Planning/Zoning                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: JD Dillard 



 

 

  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 













LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: REZ-2024-12 Vicky King 4829 Carter Lane, ~2.98ac, R-A to R-
1, Well and Septic  

  
 

  

DATE OF MEETING: May 14, 2024   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: N/A 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

  
(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: REZ-2024-12 Vicky King 4829 Carter Lane, ~2.98ac, R-A 
to R-1, Well and Septic 

 
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: This request represents a change in zoning on the subject property from R-A 
(Residential Agricultural) zoning to R-1 (Low Density Residential) zoning.  The general motivation in this case is 
for the applicant to subdivide the property into conforming lots for individual residences. The subject 
property possesses road frontage on Carter Lane, a locally maintained County Road, and is within the Urban 
Service Area and Rural Residential Character Area.   
  
The TRC analyzed the request, the standards governing the exercise of zoning power set forth in 10.01.05 of 
the ULDC, and factors most relevant to this application, including the neighboring R-1 land use and zoning 
pattern and the requirements for lots in groundwater recharge areas, and therefore recommends approval of 
the request for R-1 zoning.  
 
The GLPC heard the request and from the applicant at their April meeting, and hearing no opposition, voted 
unanimously to recommend Approval (8-0). 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1) Approve 

2) Approve with Conditions 
3) Table 
4) Deny 

  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 
  
DEPARTMENT: Planning/Zoning                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: JD Dillard 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 











To Whom It May Concern,

We (4815 Carter Lane, Lake Park, GA 31636) are located on the adjoining 
property to Mrs. King (4829 Carter Lane, Lake Park, GA).  

Please approve her request in rezoning her property from R-A to R-1 as she 
is requesting.

You are welcome to call me or email me with any other questions.  I would 
have sent this to Ms. Griffith, but there is not an email address on the 
website for her, so please forgive the intrusion.

Leanne Johnson
The Hinton Group
Live Oak Management, Inc.
Jim Hinton Oil Company, Inc.
Delta Tank Lines
ljohnson@liveoakmgmt.com
229-474-3755 phone/text/fax
229-412-3929 alternate text

mailto:ljohnson@liveoakmgmt.com


LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: Hall Road Paving & Drainage, P.I. 0016281 - Transportation 
Improvement Act (TIA) Project Agreement  

  
 

  

DATE OF MEETING: May 14, 2024   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: N/A 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

  
(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Hall Road TIA Project Agreement  
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: The Board approved submitting the Transportation Investment Act (TIA) Local 
Government Application for project delivery at the March 12, 2024, commission meeting. The Georgia 
Department of Transportation (GDOT) approved the application and sent staff the Project Agreement to be 
approved. The Project Agreement is required to be executed prior to beginning work, and once the 
agreement has been executed, a written Notice to Proceed from GDOT is also required prior to beginning any 
project phase. The agreement is for eligible project cost up to $3,700,000.00.  
  
  
OPTIONS: 1.  Approve and authorize the Chairman to sign the agreement. 

2.  Redirect.  
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 
  
DEPARTMENT: Engineering                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: Chad McLeod 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 



   

-1- 

  

 

By and Between 

  

THE GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 

and 

 

LOWNDES COUNTY 

 

 This Agreement, made and entered into as of  , (“Effective Date”), 

by and between the GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, an agency of the State of Georgia, 

hereinafter referred to as the "DEPARTMENT", and LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA, acting by and through its 

Mayor and City Council or Board of Commissioners, as the case may be, hereinafter referred to as the 

"LOCAL GOVERNMENT". 

WHEREAS, pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 48-8-240 et seq., the General Assembly adopted the 

Transportation Investment Act of 2010 which creates twelve (12) special districts of the State and 

authorized elections to be held in each special district which would allow each special district 

independently of any other district to approve and authorize the imposition of a special district 

transportation sales and use tax to fund transportation projects within the special district; and  

WHEREAS, four (4) of the twelve (12) special tax districts voted to levy the special district sales and 

use tax by voter referendum: the Central Savannah River Area special tax district, the River Valley special 

tax district, the Heart of Georgia Altamaha special tax district, and the Southern Georgia special tax district; 

and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with O.C.G.A. § 48-8-249(b)(1) and an Intergovernmental Agreement 

between the Department and the Georgia State Financing and Investment Commission dated January 1, 

2013, and thereafter amended, the Department is authorized to manage the execution, schedule, budget 

and delivery of the Projects on the Approved Investment List(s) for the special districts; and 

WHEREAS, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT desires to deliver all or part of the scope for the following 

project(s) as set forth in Exhibit B: 

1) Hall Road Paving & Drainage, P.I. 0016281 

hereinafter individually referred to as “PROJECT” and collectively referred to as "PROJECTS"; and 

WHEREAS the PROJECT was approved by the final regional transportation roundtable for the special 

district and provided to the Director of Planning in accordance with O.C.G.A. § 48-8-243(b); and 

WHEREAS, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT has indicated that it is qualified and experienced to provide 

such services necessary for all or part of the scope of the PROJECT and the DEPARTMENT has relied upon 

such representations; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with O.C.G.A. § 48-8-249(c)(4), the DEPARTMENT has made the 

determination that the LOCAL GOVERNMENT has the requisite experience to undertake the PROJECT as set 

forth in the Local Project Delivery Application form, Appendix A, attached hereto and incorporated herein 

by reference; and 

WHEREAS, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT has been approved by the DEPARTMENT to deliver these 

PROJECT; and, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to provisions of O.C.G.A. § 48-8-249(b), GSFIC is authorized to dispense special 

district transportation sales and use tax proceeds, hereinafter referred to as “TIA PROCEEDS”, upon the 

receipt of certified invoices from the DEPARTMENT of the completion of an Eligible PROJECT Cost, as herein 

defined, as reimbursement to the DEPARTMENT; and  

WHEREAS, the Georgia Constitution authorizes intergovernmental agreements whereby state and 

local entities may contract with one another “for joint services, for the provision of services, or for the joint 

 

TRANSPORTATION INVESTMENT ACT OF 2010  PROJECT  AGREEMENT



   

-2- 

 

 

 

 

    

“Exhibit B”, Scope and Procedure, attached hereto and incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

 The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be responsible for assuring that the PROJECT will be economically 

feasible and that the design and construction will be based upon sound engineering principles, meet 

American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials ("AASHTO") Guidelines and will be 

sensitive to ecological, environmental and archaeological issues.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall also be 

responsible for assuring that the PROJECT meets and comply with the scope as defined in the Approved 

Investment List. 

It is understood and agreed that the reimbursement for the PROJECT shall be dependent on the 

DEPARTMENT’s review and approval of the certified vouchers and contingent upon the availability of TIA 

PROCEEDS as more specifically set forth in Article VI, COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT. 

The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall work with the DEPARTMENT or its designees, as may be designated 

by the DEPARTMENT at a later date, who will advise the LOCAL GOVERNMENT on the work scope and 

provide guidance and required approvals during implementation of the PROJECT.  

B. Local Project Delivery Application. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT has submitted its Local 

Project Delivery Application to administer the PROJECT attached hereto as Appendix A.  The DEPARTMENT’S 

State TIA Administrator has reviewed, confirmed and approved the Local Project Delivery Application for the 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT to develop the PROJECT within the scope of its certification. Expenditures incurred by 

the LOCAL GOVERNMENT prior to the execution of this AGREEMENT or expenditures made pursuant to 

other funding agreements shall not be reimbursed by the DEPARTMENT.  

C. Applicable Laws, Regulations and Standards.  During the duration of the PROJECT and this 

Agreement, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT has and will take into consideration, and has and will comply with, as 

applicable, the DEPARTMENT'S Transportation Investment Act of 2010 Manual – Processes and Procedures, 

available on the DEPARTMENT’s website, and as may be amended or supplemented from time to time and 

including addenda (hereinafter referred to as “TIA Manual”), and other standards and guidelines as may be 

applicable to the PROJECT.  The DEPARTMENT may in its sole discretion waive certain requirements set forth 

in the TIA Manual unilaterally or upon receipt of a written request from the LOCAL GOVERNMENT. 

D. Notices to Proceed.  The work shall be carried on in accordance with the schedule attached 

to this Agreement as "Exhibit A" WORK SCHEDULE with the understanding that unforeseen events may make 

necessary some minor variations in that schedule.  The DEPARTMENT may request additional or updated 

information and documentation regarding the WORK SCHEDULE from the LOCAL GOVERNMENT at any time.   

No work on any phase of the PROJECT shall begin without a written notice to proceed from the 

DEPARTMENT to the LOCAL GOVERNMENT for each of the following separate phases: 

1) Preliminary Engineering Activities – Concept Report Approval 

2) Preliminary Engineering Activities – Field Plan Review Approval 

3) Right of Way 

4) Construction – Notice to Advertise 

5) Construction – Notice to Proceed 

6) Transit – Operations Per Year (if applicable) 

Each Notice to Proceed will contain a Completion Date for that phase, which shall be binding.  If 

unforeseen conditions are encountered and an extension of the completion date is warranted, the LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT may request in writing an extension of the completion date for written approval by the 

DEPARTMENT. 

 

or separate use of facilities or equipment; but such contracts must deal with activities, services or facilities

which the parties are authorized by law to undertake or provide.”  Ga. Constitution Article IX, §III, ¶I(a).

  NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and  the benefits to flow from one to the

other,  the DEPARTMENT and the  LOCAL GOVERNMENT  do  hereby agree as follows:

  ARTICLE I

SCOPE AND PROCEDURE

A. General Scope and Procedures.  The SCOPE AND PROCEDURE for the PROJECT  is set forth in



   

-3- 

E. Preliminary Engineering Activities.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be solely responsible 

for the Preliminary Engineering (“PE”) activities for the PROJECT.  The PE activities shall be accomplished in 

accordance with the ACT, the DEPARTMENT’s TIA Manual, and all applicable design guidelines and policies 

of the DEPARTMENT in order to produce a cost effective PROJECT.  Failure to follow the TIA Manual and all 

applicable guidelines and policies will jeopardize the reimbursement of TIA PROCEEDS in some or all 

categories outlined in this Agreement, and it shall be the responsibility of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT for any 

loss of funding.   

F. Right of Way Acquisition.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be solely responsible for Right of 

Way Acquisition. The Right of Way (hereinafter referred to as “ROW”) activities shall be accomplished in 

accordance with the ACT, the DEPARTMENT’s TIA Manual, and all applicable design guidelines and policies 

of the DEPARTMENT in order to produce a cost effective PROJECT.  Failure to follow the TIA Manual and all 

applicable guidelines and policies will jeopardize the reimbursement of TIA PROCEEDS in some or all 

categories outlined in this Agreement, and it shall be the responsibility of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT for any 

loss funding.   

Upon approval of the ROW plans by the DEPARTMENT, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT may begin the 

acquisition of the necessary ROW for the PROJECTS. ROW acquisition can occur concurrently with the 

environmental process once final impacts are known, provided that the DEPARTMENT has provided a 

written notice to proceed to the LOCAL GOVERNMENT to stake the ROW and proceed with all pre-acquisition 

ROW activities.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall acquire ROW, if required, and related ROW services for the 

PROJECTS.  Further, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be responsible for making all changes to the approved 

ROW plans, as deemed necessary by the DEPARTMENT, for whatever reason, as needed to purchase the 

ROW or to match actual conditions encountered.   

Reimbursement of acquisition expenses will be eligible on a monthly basis.  After completion of all 

land and improvement acquisition; completion of all property management; completion of all demolition; 

and, after all occupants have relocated off the PROJECTS, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall certify in writing to 

the DEPARTMENT that title to all parcels, whether acquired by deed or condemnation, has been quitclaimed 

from the LOCAL GOVERNMENT to the DEPARTMENT where PROJECTS are located on a federal or state route, 

and that all property management, all demolition and all relocation has been completed. Said certification 

will include a statement that “All parcels are vacant and immediately available for construction purposes”. 

The LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees to pay for the defense of any and all suits, if any should arise, 

involving property titles and/or contaminated properties associated with the acquisition of ROW by deed or 

condemnation.  To the extent allowed by law, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT hereby agrees to indemnify and 

hold harmless the DEPARTMENT, the State of Georgia and its departments, agencies and instrumentalities 

and all of their respective officers, members, employees and directors  from and against any and all claims, 

demands, liabilities, losses, costs or expenses, including attorneys' fees, due to due to liability to a third 

party or Parties, arising from, related to, or caused by property titles and/or contaminated properties 

associated with the acquisition of ROW by deed or  condemnation. 

G. Utility/Railroad Activities.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be solely responsible for the 

Utility/Railroad Activities for the PROJECT.  The Utility/Railroad Activities shall be accomplished in 

accordance with the ACT, the DEPARTMENT’s TIA Manual, and all applicable design guidelines and policies 

of the DEPARTMENT in order to produce a cost effective PROJECT.  Failure to follow the TIA Manual and all 

applicable guidelines and policies will jeopardize the reimbursement of TIA PROCEEDS in some or all 

categories outlined in this Agreement, and it shall be the responsibility of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT for any 

loss of funding.   

H. Construction.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be solely responsible for Construction. 

Construction shall be accomplished in accordance with the ACT, the DEPARTMENT’s TIA Manual, and all 

applicable design guidelines and policies of the DEPARTMENT in order to produce a cost effective PROJECT.  

Failure to follow the TIA Manual and all applicable guidelines and policies will jeopardize the 

reimbursement of TIA PROCEEDS in some or all categories outlined in this Agreement, and it shall be the 

responsibility of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT for any loss of funding.   

The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall ensure that all contracts as well as any subcontracts for the 

construction and implementation of the PROJECTS shall comply with the applicable State legal requirements 

imposed on the DEPARTMENT and any amendments thereto.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT is required and 



   

-4- 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

   

J. RESERVED.    

K. Reporting.  During each phase of the PROJECT, on a monthly basis, the LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT must submit to the DEPARTMENT the Estimated Costs to Complete and the Estimated Costs 

at Completion. 

  

does  agree  to  abide  by  those  provisions  governing  the  DEPARTMENT's  authority  to  contract  Sections

32-2-60  through  32-2-77  of  the  Official  Code  of  Georgia  Annotated;  the  DEPARTMENT's  Rules  and

Regulations  governing  the  Prequalification  of  Prospective  Bidders,  Chapter  672-5;  the  DEPARTMENT's

Standard  Specifications  and  Special  Provisions,  Current  Edition,  as  amended  in  the  DEPARTMENT’s

Supplemental  Specifications  Book,  current  edition;  and  any  Supplemental  Specifications  and  Special

Provisions as applicable for the  PROJECTS.

  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall  be  solely  responsible for letting the  PROJECT  to construction, for the

execution  of  all  applicable  agreements,  and  for  securing  and  awarding  the  construction  contract  for  the

PROJECT  after  the following items have been completed and submitted by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT  to the

DEPARTMENT:

1. Submittal of acceptable PE activity deliverables for the  PROJECT  as noted in  the TIA Manual;

and

2. Providing the necessary certifications  as set forth in the TIA Manual.

  The  work  can  be  performed  by  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  or  can  be  subcontracted  through  the

appropriate  procurement  process  to  a  private  contractor  or  government  entity  as  may  be  appropriate.   If
the work is performed by a private contractor,  the LOCAL GOVERNMENT is responsible for preparing the bid

contract documents and letting the work out for bid in accordance with the express limitations as provided

in Part 2 of  Chapter 4 of  Article 3 of Title 32 or any  other applicable provisions of State law.  Upon opening

bids,  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  shall  award  the  PROJECTS  to  the  lowest  reliable  bidder.  The  LOCAL

GOVERNMENT  shall  provide  the  above  deliverables  and  certifications  and  shall  follow  the  requirements  of

the DEPARTMENT’s  TIA  Manual.

  Prior  to  award  of  the  PROJECT,  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  shall  submit  to  the  DEPARTMENT  a  bid

tabulation and the  LOCAL GOVERNMENT’s recommendation for awarding  the  PROJECT.   The  DEPARTMENT

will review the  information  focusing on budget  proposals  and issue a written recommendation to award or

reject the bids. If a recommendation to award is given by the DEPARTMENT a written Notice to Proceed with

Construction will be issued.  No work shall begin until this  Notice to Proceed has been issued to the LOCAL

GOVERNMENT.

  The  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  will  be  responsible  for  performing  the  construction,  inspection,

supervision and documentation.  At the discretion of the DEPARTMENT, spot inspection and material testing

will  be  performed by the DEPARTMENT when deemed necessary  by the  DEPARTMENT and pursuant to  the

TIA Manual.

I.  RESERVED.



   

-5- 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

   

 

 

 

 

and continue for a period of ten (10) years, unless terminated earlier by either Party in accordance with the 

termination provisions set forth in Article XI below. 

B. Time of Performance. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE IN THIS AGREEMENT.  The LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT shall perform its responsibilities for the PROJECT, commencing upon receipt from the 

DEPARTMENT of written Notice to Proceed for each Phase as outline in Article I.D above. 

C. The work shall be carried on expeditiously, it being understood, however, that this 

Agreement may be extended or continued in force by mutual consent of the parties and evidenced by a 

written amendment thereto.  If, for any reason, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT does not produce acceptable 

deliverables in accordance with the approved schedule, the DEPARTMENT reserves the right to take control 

of the PROJECT and to complete the PROJECTS through its own process. 

ARTICLE IV 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR CLAIMS AND LIABILITY 

 

 The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall, to the extent permitted by law, be responsible for any and all 

damages to property or persons and shall indemnify and save harmless the DEPARTMENT, its officers, 

agents and employees from all suits, claims, actions or damages of any nature whatsoever resulting from 

the negligence of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT in the performance of the work under this Agreement.   

 It is understood by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT that claims, damages, losses, and expenses may 

include monetary claims made by the construction contractor for the PROJECT, and its related facilities, that 

are a result of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT's negligence or improper representation in the plans. 

 The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall ensure that all provisions of this Article are included in all contracts 

and subcontracts. 

 These indemnities shall not be limited by reason of any insurance coverage held by the LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT or the LOCAL GOVERNMENT's contractors or subcontractors as allowed by law. 

  

ARTICLE II

REVIEW OF WORK

  Authorized representatives of the DEPARTMENT,  GSFIC  and the Citizens Review Panel as defined in

O.C.G.A. § 48-8-251  may at all reasonable times review and inspect the activities and data collected under

the terms of this  Agreement and amendments thereto, including but not limited to, all reports,  drawings,

studies,  specifications,  estimates,  maps,  and  computations,  prepared  by  or  for  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT.

The  DEPARTMENT  reserves  the  right  for  reviews  and  acceptance  on  the  part  of  affected  public  agencies,

railroads and utilities insofar as the interest of  each is concerned.

  Acceptance shall not relieve the  LOCAL GOVERNMENT  of its obligation to correct, at its expense, any

of its errors in the work.  The DEPARTMENT's review recommendations shall be incorporated into the work

activities of the  LOCAL GOVERNMENT.

  The  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  shall  keep  accurate  records  in  a  manner  approved  by  the  DEPARTMENT

with  regard  to  the  PROJECTS  and  submit  to  the  DEPARTMENT,  upon  request,  such  information  and

documentation  as is required in order to ensure compliance with this Article  and the  ACT.

ARTICLE III

TERM OF AGREEMENT AND  TIME OF PERFORMANCE

A. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement will commence on the Effective Date as defined above



   

-6- 

 

 

 

 

 is self-insured and all claims against LOCAL GOVERNMENT will be handled through          

   

OR 

 shall, prior to beginning work, obtain and furnish to the DEPARTMENT certificates and the 

endorsement page for the minimum amounts of insurance indicated below. 

 Prior to beginning work, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall cause its engineering firms, contractors and 

subcontractors to obtain and furnish certificates and the endorsement page to the DEPARTMENT for the 

minimum amounts of insurance indicated below. 

MINIMUM INSURANCE 

A. Workers’ Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia. 

B. Public Liability Insurance in an amount of not less than one hundred thousand dollars 

($100,000) for injuries, including those resulting in death to any one person, and in an amount 

of not less than three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000) on an account of any one 

occurrence. 

C. Commercial General Liability Insurance of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence $3,000,000 

aggregate, including Automobile Comprehensive Liability Coverage with bodily injury in the 

minimum amount of $1,000,000 combined single limits each occurrence.  GDOT shall be 

named as an additional insured and a copy of the policy endorsement shall be provided with 

the insurance certificate.  Valuable Papers Insurance in an amount sufficient to assure the 

restoration of any plans, drawings, field notes, or other similar data relating to the work 

covered by the PROJECT. 

D. Where applicable, professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance with limits not less 

than the following: 

i. For Professionals – $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 in aggregate coverage; 

ii. For Sub-consultant Engineers and Architects – $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 in 

aggregate coverage; 

iii. For Other Consultants – $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 in aggregate coverage. 

iv. Professional liability insurance that shall be either a practice policy or project-specific 

coverage.  Professional liability insurance shall contain prior acts coverage for services 

performed for this PROJECT. If project-specific coverage is used, these requirements 

shall be continued in effect for two years following final completion for the PROJECTS. 

 

 The above listed instrument(s) of insurance shall be maintained in full force and effect during the 

life of the Agreement and until final completion of the PROJECTS. 

 

  

ARTICLE V

INSURANCE

It is understood that the LOCAL GOVERNMENT  (indicate by checking which is applicable):



   

-7- 

ARTICLE VI 

COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT 

 

A. 100% TIA Funded Project. 

 THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE PROJECTS ARE 100% FUNDED WITH TIA 

PROCEEDS COLLECTED PURSUANT TO THE ACT AND THAT THE DEPARTMENT’S PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS 

RELATED TO THE PROJECTS ARE STRICTLY LIMITED AS SET FORTH HEREIN. THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT NO ENTITY OF THE STATE OF GEORGIA OTHER THAN THE DEPARTMENT 

HAS ANY OBLIGATIONS TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT RELATED TO THESE PROJECTS.  

 THE OBLIGATION OF THE DEPARTMENT TO PAY OR REIMBURSE ANY INCURRED COST IS EXPRESSLY 

LIMITED TO THE AMOUNT OF TIA PROCEEDS REMITTED TO THE DEPARTMENT BY GSFIC AND DESIGNATED 

BY THE DEPARTMENT FOR THE PROJECTS.  THIS AGREEMENT DOES NOT OBLIGATE THE DEPARTMENT TO 

MAKE ANY PAYMENT TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT FROM ANY FUNDS OTHER THAN THOSE MADE 

AVAILABLE TO THE DEPARTMENT FROM TIA PROCEEDS BY GSFIC AND DESIGNATED BY THE DEPARTMENT 

FOR THE PROJECTS.  IN THE EVENT THE FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE TO THE DEPARTMENT FROM TIA PROCEEDS 

ARE INSUFFICIENT FOR THE PROJECTS AS DESIGNATED BY THE DEPARTMENT, THE DEPARTMENT’S PAYMENT 

OBLIGATIONS SHALL NOT EXCEED THE AVAILABILITY OF SUCH TIA PROCEEDS AND THE DEPARTMENT SHALL 

HAVE THE RIGHT AT ITS SOLE DISCRETION TO TERMINATE THIS AGREEMENT IMMEDIATELY UPON NOTICE TO 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT WITHOUT FURTHER OBLIGATION OF THE DEPARTMENT TO THE EXTENT THAT THE 

OBLIGATIONS EXCEED THE AVAILABILITY OF SUCH TIA PROCEEDS FOR THE PROJECTS AS DESIGNATED BY 

THE DEPARTMENT. THE DEPARTMENT’S CERTIFICATION AS TO THE AVAILABILITY OF TIA PROCEEDS AS 

DESIGNATED BY THE DEPARTMENT FOR THE PROJECTS SHALL BE CONCLUSIVE. 

 Any payments shall be made to the LOCAL GOVERNMENT after receipt of such TIA PROCEEDS from 

GSFIC.  The parties agree that the provisions of the Georgia Prompt Pay Act, O.C.G.A. § 13-11-1 et seq., do 

not control and that the LOCAL GOVERNMENT waives any and all rights it may have under said Act. 

 The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall ensure that the provisions of this Article are included in all contracts 

and subcontracts. 

 To the extent practically possible, the DEPARTMENT will provide notification to the LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT that this Agreement will be terminated or that the work will be suspended as set forth in 

Subsection VI.E below, three (3) months prior to the date of the termination or suspension. 

B. Eligible Project Costs.  Any LOCAL GOVERNMENT cost must meet the definition of ELIGIBLE 

PROJECT COST as set forth in O.C.G.A. § 48-8-242(2) and the Intergovernmental Agreement 

between GDOT and GSFIC in order to be compensated. 

C. Budget Estimate and Reimbursement. 

 It is understood and agreed that the total cost of the PROJECT is the amount established in the 

Approved Investment List plus any additional funds added with the approval of the DEPARTMENT.  This cost 

or BUDGET ESTIMATE, as shown below, is the maximum amount of TIA PROCEEDS that can be made 

available for the PROJECT, contingent upon the provisions set forth herein.  The BUDGET ESTIMATE shall 

include any claims by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT for all costs incurred by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT in the 

conduct of the entire scope of work for the PROJECT.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be solely responsible 

for any and all amounts in excess of the BUDGET ESTIMATE or for amounts not available from TIA 

PROCEEDS. 

  



   

-8- 

  

 

  

   

 

 

   

  

 

D. Process For Payment. 

The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall submit to the DEPARTMENT monthly payment vouchers containing 

Project Number and PI number for ELIGIBLE PROJECT COSTS. Payment Vouchers will be made monthly on 

the basis of calendar months.  In the event a monthly payment voucher is $500.00 or less, the LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT shall forgo the submission of the monthly voucher until such time that the sum of amounts 

earned less previous partial payments exceeds $500.00.  The DEPARTMENT shall, at the request of the 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT, review such payment vouchers.  If approved, the vouchers shall be certified by the 

Commissioner of Transportation or the Commissioner’s designee and submitted to GSFIC along with the 

DEPARTMENT’S certification.  After reimbursement from GSFIC, payment shall be made to the LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT, subject to the provisions set forth herein. 

 Should the work for the PROJECTS begin within any one month, the first voucher shall cover the 

partial period from the beginning date of the work through the last date of the month in which it began.  

The vouchers shall be numbered consecutively and subsequent vouchers submitted each month until the 

work is completed.    

 Payment will be made in the amount of sums earned less previous partial payments, contingent 

entirely upon the availability of TIA FUNDS as set forth herein.  If an error is found in a previously paid 

invoice which resulted in overbilling by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT and/or an overpayment to the LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT, future payments will be made in the amount of sums earned less this error, contingent 

entirely upon the availability of TIA FUNDS as set forth herein. 

 The final payment voucher shall reflect the actual cost of work accomplished by the LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT under the terms of this Agreement, and shall be the basis for final payment.  The final 

payment voucher shall include all ELIGIBLE PROJECT COSTS incurred by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT in all 

phases.  See ARTICLE VII, FINAL PAYMENT for further detail.  The final payment voucher for the PROJECTS 

must contain a certification from the LOCAL GOVERNMENT that all work has been completed in accordance 

with this Agreement in accordance with the scope as defined in the Approved Investment List, using the 

form provided by the DEPARTMENT. 

 Should the work under this Agreement be terminated by the DEPARTMENT, pursuant to the 

provisions of ARTICLE XI, TERMINATION, or subsection E. herein, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be paid 

based upon the percentage of work completed at the point of termination, notwithstanding any just claims 

by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT, and contingent entirely upon the availability of TIA PROCEEDS as set forth 

herein. 

E. Insufficient TIA FUNDS. 

 If the DEPARTMENT determines that there are insufficient TIA PROCEEDS remitted to the Department 

by GSFIC and designated by the Department for the PROJECTS, the DEPARTMENT may at in its sole 

discretion: 

1) Terminate this Agreement immediately (and not pursuant to the provisions of Article XI) 

upon notice to the LOCAL GOVERNMENT and without further obligation on the part of the 

DEPARTMENT; or 

2) Direct the Local Government to stop work under this Agreement.  Such stop work suspension 

shall last for a maximum of ninety (90) days.  After this ninety (90) day period, if TIA PROCEEDS as 

designated by the DEPARTMENT for the PROJECTS are available or are anticipated to be available, the 

  The  DEPARTMENT  agrees  to  reimburse  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  Not  to  Exceed  the

following amounts for each  PROJECT  for  ELIGIBLE PROJECT COSTS, contingent upon the availability of  TIA

PROCEEDS  as more specifically set forth in Article  VI, COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT:

1) Hall  Road  Paving  &  Drainage,  P.I.  0016281:  THREE  MILLION  SEVEN  HUNDRED

THOUSAND  DOLLARS AND ZERO CENTS ($3,700,000.00)

Costs  eligible  for  reimbursement  are  those  ELIGIBLE  PROJECT  COSTS  as  defined  in  Article  VI,

COMPENSATION  AND  PAYMENT.  If  the  PROJECTS  costs  are  less  than  the  BUDGET  ESTIMATE,   the  LOCAL

GOVERNMENT will only be  compensated for those incurred  ELIGIBLE PROJECT COSTS.



   

-9- 

   

  

  

 

 

ARTICLE VII 

FINAL PAYMENT 

 

 Upon completion of the work by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT and acceptance by the DEPARTMENT of 

the work, including the receipt of any final written submission by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT and a final 

statement of costs, the DEPARTMENT shall submit the certified final payment voucher to GSFIC and, after 

receipt of reimbursement from GSFIC, shall pay to the LOCAL GOVERNMENT a sum equal to one hundred 

percent (100%) of the total compensation as set forth in all approved invoices, less the total of all previous 

partial payments, paid or in the process of payment, contingent upon the availability of TIA FUNDS as set 

forth in ARTICLE VI, COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT. 

 The LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees that acceptance of this final payment shall be in full and final 

settlement of all claims arising against the DEPARTMENT or the State for work done, materials furnished, 

costs incurred, or otherwise arising out of this Agreement and shall release the DEPARTMENT and the State 

from any and all further claims of whatever nature, whether known or unknown, for and on account of said 

Agreement, and for any and all work done, and labor and materials furnished, in connection with the same. 

 The LOCAL GOVERNMENT will allow examination and verification of costs by the DEPARTMENT and 

GSFIC’s representative(s) before final payment is made, in accordance with the provisions of Article IX, 

MAINTENANCE OF CONTRACT COST RECORDS, herein.  If the DEPARTMENT or any authorized entity’s 

examination of the contract cost records, as provided for in Article IX, results in unallowable expenses, the 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall immediately be responsible for reimbursing the DEPARTMENT the full amount of 

such disallowed expenses. 

ARTICLE VIII 

SUBSTANTIAL CHANGES 

 

 No material changes in the scope, character, complexity, or duration of the PROJECTS from those 

required under the Agreement or from the general description of the PROJECTS as approved by the 

DEPARTMENT shall be allowed without the execution of a written Supplemental Agreement between the 

DEPARTMENT and LOCAL GOVERNMENT. 

 Minor changes in the work which do not involve increased compensation, extensions of time, or 

changes in the goals and objectives of the PROJECTS, may be made by written notification of such change 

by either party with written approval by the other party. 

ARTICLE IX 

MAINTENANCE OF CONTRACT COST RECORDS 

 

 The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting records, and 

other evidence pertaining to costs incurred on the PROJECTS and used in support of its proposal and shall 

make such material available at all reasonable times during the period of the Agreement, and for seven 

years from the date of final payment under the Agreement, for inspection by the DEPARTMENT, any 

authorized entity, any reviewing agencies, and the Citizen Review Panel as referenced in the ACT; and 

copies thereof shall be furnished upon request.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees that the provisions of this 

Article shall be included in any Agreement it may make with any engineering firm, contractor, 

subcontractor, assignee, or transferee.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall provide any and all information 

and/or documentation requested by GDOT or GSFIC, when either state agency is complying with the 

requirements of O.C.G.A. § 48-8-249(d). 

  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT will have the option to:  (1) continue the work under the  Agreement;  (2) elect

to  terminate  the  Agreement  pursuant  to  the  termination  provisions  set  forth  in  Article  XI;  or  (3)

agree to a new  stop work  suspension  period  as determined by the Department.  No  delay  damages

or consequential damages  will be recoverable as a result of any  stop work suspension period.



   

-10- 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

ARTICLE X

SUBLETTING, ASSIGNMENT, OR TRANSFER

  The  work  of  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  is  considered  personal  by  the  DEPARTMENT.   The  LOCAL

GOVERNMENT  agrees not to assign,  sublet,  or transfer any or all of its interest in this Agreement without

prior written approval of the DEPARTMENT.

  The DEPARTMENT reserves the right to review all  contracts and  subcontracts prepared in connection

with the Agreement  and maintained by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT, and the  LOCAL GOVERNMENT  agrees that

upon request  it shall submit  to the DEPARTMENT proposed  contract and  subcontract  documents  together

with  contractor  and  subcontractor  cost  estimates  in  its  possession  for  the  DEPARTMENT's  review  and

written concurrence in advance of their execution.

ARTICLE XI

TERMINATION

  The DEPARTMENT reserves the right to terminate this Agreement at  any time for just cause, or for

any cause,  or for no cause  upon  sixty (60)  days written notice to the  LOCAL GOVERNMENT, notwithstanding

any  just  claims  by  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  for  payment  of  services  rendered  prior  to  the  date  of

termination.  Subject to the availability of  TIA  PROCEEDS  designated by the Department for the  PROJECTS,

the provisions of ARTICLE VI COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT and the Department’s Prioritization and Order

of  Payments  policy,  the  Department  will  make  all  efforts  to  pay  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  for  services

rendered prior to the date of termination.

  Subject  to  the  provisions  of  ARTICLE  VI,  COMPENSATION  AND  PAYMENTS,  it  is  understood  by  the

parties hereto that should the DEPARTMENT terminate this Agreement prior to the completion of a  PROJECT

or  PROJECT  Element  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  shall  be  reimbursed  for  such  PROJECT  or  PROJECT  Element

contingent  upon  the  availability  of  TIA  PROCEEDS  as  set  forth  in  ARTICLE  VI,  COMPENSATION  AND

PAYMENT.

  Failure to meet the time set for completion of an approved work  authorization  may be considered

just cause for termination of the Agreement.

ARTICLE XII

MAINTENANCE  AND OPERATIONS  OF PROJECTS

  In accordance with the provisions of O.C.G.A. § 32-2-2(a)(1), the DEPARTMENT shall plan, designate,

improve,  manage,  control,  construct,  and  maintain  a  state  highway  system  and  shall  have  control  of  and

responsibility for all construction, maintenance,  or any  other work upon  the state highway  system and all

other  work  which  may  be  designated  to  be  done  by  the  DEPARTMENT  by  this  title  or  any  other  law.

However,  on  those  portions  of  the  state  highway  system  lying  within  the  corporate  limits  of  any

municipality,  the  DEPARTMENT  shall  be  required  to  provide  only  substantial  maintenance  activities  and

operations,  including  but  not  limited  to  reconstruction  and  major  resurfacing,  reconstruction  of  bridges,

erection  and  maintenance  of  official  department  signs,  painting  of  striping  and  pavement  delineators,

furnishing of guardrails and bridge rails, and other major maintenance activities.

  It  shall  be  the  duty  of  the  DEPARTMENT  to  maintain,  or  cause  to  be  maintained,  any  PROJECTS

constructed as part of a Federal-aid system.  For those  PROJECTS  that are not part of the Federal-aid system,

the  maintenance  responsibility  will  reside  with  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT,  the  county  or  municipality  in
which the  PROJECTS  are  located.

  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the DEPARTMENT is responsible for inspection of  bridges in Georgia,

both on and off the State Highway System.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT will be  notified by the DEPARTMENT

of all deficient bridges under their jurisdiction.  It is the responsibility of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT to post

load  limits  signs  or  close  bridges  based  on  the  DEPARTMENT  bridge  inspection  reports  and  the  deficient

bridge list.

  Any  maintenance  activities  that  are  the  responsibility  of  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  pursuant  to
O.C.G.A. § 32-2-2(a)(1), as set forth herein, or made the subject of other  agreements with the DEPARTMENT

shall not be reimbursed from  TIA FUNDS  except as stated herein for Transit projects.



   

-11- 

 

 

 

  

     

 

 

 

  

   

 

 

 

 

 

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

  

  The  DEPARTMENT  reserves  the  right  to  conduct  periodic  site  inspections  for  the  purpose  of

confirming  proper  operation  and  maintenance  of  the  PROJECTS.   The  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  shall  be

responsible for the continual maintenance,  operation  and replacement  of all lighting systems installed for

the  PROJECTS.

  Furthermore,  if  the  PROJECTS  pertain  to  or  includes  a  roundabout,  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  shall

also  be  responsible  for  the  maintenance  and  operation  of  all  lighting  and  the  maintenance  of  all

landscaping installed as part of any roundabout construction  and  shall not be reimbursed from  TIA FUNDS.

ARTICLE XIII

OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

  The  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  agrees  that  all  reports,  drawings,  studies,  specifications,  survey  notes,

estimates,  maps,  computations,  computer  discs  and  printouts  and  other  data  prepared  by,  of,  or  for  it
under the terms of this Agreement shall remain the property of the  LOCAL GOVERNMENT  upon termination

or completion of the work  if the work is on a local roadway.  The DEPARTMENT shall have the right to use

the same without restriction or limitation and without additional compensation to the  LOCAL GOVERNMENT

other than that provided for in this Agreement.

If  the  PROJECTS  are  on  the  state  route  system,  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  agrees  that  all  of  the

foregoing information shall be provided to the DEPARTMENT and  is  the  sole  property of the DEPARTMENT.

ARTICLE XIV

PUBLICATION AND  PUBLICITY

  Articles, papers, bulletins, data, studies, statistics, interim or final reports, oral  transmittals or any

other  materials  reporting  the  plans,  progress,  analyses,  results,  or  findings  of  work  conducted  under  this

Agreement  regarding  the  TIA  Program  shall  not  be  presented  publicly  or  published  without  prior  written

approval by the DEPARTMENT.

  All releases of information, findings, and recommendations  regardingi the TIA Program  shall include

a  disclaimer  provision  and  that  all  published  reports  shall  include  that  disclaimer  on  the  cover  and  title
page in the following form:

"The contents in this publication reflect the views of the author(s), who is (are)

responsible  for  the  facts  and  accuracy  of  the  data  presented  herein.  The

opinions,  findings,  and  conclusions  in  this  publication  are  those  of  the

author(s) and do not necessarily reflect the official views or  policies of those

of the Department of Transportation, State of Georgia.  This publication does

not constitute a standard, specification or regulation.”

  If  any  information  concerning  the  TIA  Program,  its  conduct,  results  or  data  gathered  or  processed

should be released by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT without prior approval from the DEPARTMENT, the release

of  same  may  constitute  grounds  for  termination  of  this  Agreement  without  indemnity  to  the  LOCAL

GOVERNMENT;  but  should  any  such  information  be  released  by  the  DEPARTMENT,  or  by  the  LOCAL

GOVERNMENT  with  such  prior  written  approval,  the  same  shall  be  regarded  as  public  information  and  no

longer subject to the restrictions of this Agreement.

  Provided, however, that should the release of such information be required under the Georgia Open

Records   Act,  O.C.G.A.  Section   50-18-70,  et.seq.,  the   restrictions   and   penalties   set   forth   herein   shall

not apply.   Any  request  for  information  directed  to  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT,  pursuant  to  the  Georgia

Open Records  Act,  for  documents  that  are  either  received  or  maintained  by  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT

in   the  performance   of   a   service   or   function   for   or   on   behalf   of   the   DEPARTMENT   shall   be   released

pursuant   to  provisions   of   the   Open   Records   Act.   Further,  the   LOCAL   GOVERNMENT   agrees   to
consult  with  the DEPARTMENT prior to releasing the requested documents.



   

-12- 

ARTICLE XV 

DBE, SMALL BUSINESS AND VETERAN OWNED BUSINESS 

 

A. On May 17, 2012, the DEPARTMENT, acting by and through its Board, passed a resolution in 

which it: 

1) reaffirmed its commitment to Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act of nondiscrimination in the 

delivery and management of TIA funded projects; and 

2) encouraged the use of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (including minority and woman 

owned businesses), small businesses, and veteran owned businesses in any project that is funded in 

whole or in part by TIA funds, and encouraged wherever practical and feasible, the local government 

or governments that manage TIA funded projects to include the same in its delivery and 

management of a project. 

B. Reference to this resolution shall be included in all contracts entered in by the LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT related to these PROJECTS.  

C. While there is no DBE, small businesses or veteran owned businesses Goal required, the 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT is required provide the following informationto  monthly to the DEPARTMENT 

regarding whether it utilized any DBE (as defined in forth in 49 CFR Part 26), small business (as defined in 

13 CFR Part 121) or veteran owned, along with the following information: 

1) The names and addresses of DBE firms, small businesses or  veteran owned businesses 

committed to participate in the Contract; 

2) A description of the work each DBE firm, small business or  veteran owned business will 

perform; and 

3) The dollar amount of the participation of each DBE firm, small business or veteran owned 

business participating. 

ARTICLE XVI 

 

The Parties acknowledge that the documents listed below are hereby incorporated into and made a 

part of this Agreement as though expressly written herein: 

A. TIA Manual; and 

B. Department’s “TIA Invoice Process”, as may be amended from time to time; and  

C. Intergovernmental Agreement between the Georgia Department of Transportation and the 

Georgia State Financing and Investment Commission with an Effective Date of January 1, 2013, as 

amended by Supplemental Agreement No.1 dated October 23, 2013, and Supplemental Agreement 

No. 2 dated September 13, 2018. 

ARTICLE XVII 

 

A. ASSIGNMENT.  Except as herein provided, the Parties hereto will not transfer or assign all or 

any of their rights, titles or interests hereunder or delegate any of their duties or obligations hereunder 

without the prior written consent of the other Party, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld.   

B. NON WAIVER.  No failure of either Party to exercise any right or power given to such Party 

under this Agreement, or to insist upon strict compliance by the other Party with the provisions of this 

Agreement, and no custom or practice of either Party at variance with the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement, will constitute a waiver of either Party's right to demand exact and strict compliance by the 

other Party with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

C. CONTINUITY.  Each of the provisions of this Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the 

benefit and detriment of GDOT and the LOCAL GOVERNMENT and the successors and assigns of GDOT and 

the LOCAL GOVERNMENT. 

D. TIME OF THE ESSENCE.  All time limits stated herein are of the essence of this Agreement. 



   

-13- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

numbered but each of which is deemed an original of equal dignity with the other and which is deemed one 

and the same instrument as the other. 

J. INTERPRETATION.  Should any provision of this Agreement require judicial interpretation, it 

is agreed that the court interpreting or construing the same shall not apply a presumption that the terms 

hereof shall be more strictly construed against one Party by reason of the rule of construction that a 

document is to be construed more strictly against the Party who itself or through its agent prepared the 

same, it being agreed that the agents of all Parties have participated in the preparation hereof.  

K. EXECUTION.  Each of the individuals executing this Agreement represents that they are 

authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of their respective entities.  This Agreement may be 

executed in any number of counterparts, each of which so executed shall be deemed to be an original, and 

such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same Agreement.  The parties shall be entitled 

to sign and transmit an electronic signature of this Agreement (whether by facsimile, PDF, or other email 

transmission), which signature shall be binding on the party whose name is contained therein.  Any party 

providing an electronic signature agrees to promptly execute and deliver to the other parties an original 

signed Agreement upon request. 

L. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  Nothing contained herein shall be construed as conferring 

upon or giving to any person, other than the Parties hereto, any rights or benefits under or by reason of 

this Agreement. 

M. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement supersedes all prior negotiations, discussion, 

statements and agreements between the Parties and constitutes the full, complete and entire agreement 

between the Parties with respect hereto; no member, officer, employee or agent of either Party has 

authority to make, or has made, any statement, agreement, representation or contemporaneous agreement, 

oral or written, in connection herewith, amending, supplementing, modifying, adding to, deleting from, or 

changing the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  No modification of or amendment to this Agreement 

will be binding on either Party hereto unless such modification or amendment will be properly authorized, 

in writing, properly signed by both Parties and incorporated in and by reference made a part hereof. 

 

ARTICLE XVIII 

COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS 

 

A. The undersigned, on behalf of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT, certify that the provisions of 

Section 45-10-20 through 45-10-28 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated relating to Conflict of Interest 

and State employees and officials trading with the State have been complied with in full. 

B. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT has read and understands the regulations for STATE AUDIT 

REQUIREMENT as stated in Appendix B of this Agreement and will comply in full with said provisions of 

O.C.G.A. § 36-81-7. 

E. PREAMBLE, RECITALS AND EXHIBITS.  The Preamble,  Recitals and Exhibits hereto are a part of

this Agreement and are incorporated herein by reference.

F. SEVERABILITY.  If any one or more of the provisions contained herein are for any reason held

by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity,

illegality or unenforceability will not affect any other provision hereof, and this Agreement will be construed

as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.

G. CAPTIONS.  The brief headings or titles preceding each provision hereof are for purposes of

identification and convenience only and should be completely disregarded in construing this Agreement.

H. GEORGIA  AGREEMENT.   This  Agreement  will  be  governed,  construed  under,  performed  and

enforced  in  accordance  with  the  laws  of  the  State  of  Georgia.  Any  dispute  arising  from  this  contractual

relationship  shall  be  governed  by  the  laws  of  the  State  of  Georgia,  and  shall  be  decided  solely  and

exclusively  by  the  Superior  Court  of  Fulton  County,  Georgia.   LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  hereby  consents  to
personal jurisdiction and venue in said court and waives any claim of inconvenient forum.

I. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement is executed in  three (3) counterparts which are separately

https://www.lawinsider.com/clause/counterparts-and-electronic-signatures


   

-14- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

   

 

 

    

drug-free workplace will be provided for the subcontractor's employees during the performance of 

this Agreement pursuant to paragraph (7) of subsection (b) of the Official Code of Georgia 

Annotated Section 50-24-3". 

2) Through execution of this Agreement, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT certifies that it will not 

engage in unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled 

substance or marijuana during the performance of the Agreement. 

The covenants herein contained shall, except as otherwise provided, accrue to the benefit of and be 

binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 

 

  

C. By  execution  of  this  Agreement,  I,  on  behalf  of  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT,  certify  under

penalty  of  law  that  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  is  in  compliance  with  the  service  delivery  strategy  law

(O.C.G.A.  Sec.  36-701  et  seq.)  and  is  not  debarred  from  receiving  financial  assistance  from  the  State  of

Georgia, as stated in Appendix B.

D. The  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  hereby  agrees  that  it  shall  comply,  and  shall  require  its
subcontractors  to,  comply  with  all  applicable  requirements  of  the  American  with  Disabilities  Act  of  1990 

(ADA),  42  U.S.C.  12101,  et  seq.  and  49  U.S.C.  322;  Section  504  of  the  Rehabilitation  Act  of  1973,

as amended, 29 U.S.C. 791; and regulations and amendments thereto.

E. The  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  hereby  agrees  that  it  shall,  and  shall  require  its  contractors  and

subcontractors  to,  comply  with  GA  Code  Title  25,  Section  9,  Georgia  Utility  Facility  Protection  Act,  CALL

BEFORE YOU DIG 1-800-282-7411.

F. Pursuant  to  O.C.G.A.  §  13-10-91,  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  and  all  contractors  and

subcontractors performing work under this Agreement are, and shall be at all times, in compliance with the

Federal  Work  Authorization  Program.   Prime  contractors  and  subcontractors  may  participate  in  any  of  the

electronic verification work authorization programs operated by the United States Department of Homeland

Security  or  any  equivalent  federal  work  authorization  program  operated  by  the  United  State  Homeland

Security  to  verify  information  of  newly  hired  employees,  pursuant  to  the  Immigration  Reform  and  Control

Act of 1986 (“IRCA”), Appendix  C.

G. LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  acknowledges  and  agrees  that  failure  to  complete  appropriate

certifications  or  the  submission  of  a  false  certification  shall  result  in  the  termination  of  this  Agreement

pursuant to the provisions of Article XI.

H. The  undersigned,  on  behalf  of  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT,  certifies  that  it  shall  comply  with

the provisions of Section 50-24-1 through 50-24-6 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to the

"Drug-Free  Workplace  Act",  in  full;  and  a  drug-free  workplace  will  be  provided  for  the  Local  Government's

employees during the performance of the Agreement.

1)  Each  subcontractor  hired  by  the  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  shall  be  required  to  ensure  that  the

subcontractor's  employees  are  provided  a  drug-free  workplace.   The  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  shall

secure  from  that  subcontractor  the  following  written  certification:   "As  part  of  the  subcontracting

contract  with  ,  certifies  that  a



   

-15- 

 

 

GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA 

TRANSPORTATION 

 

 

    

Commissioner (Seal) Signature Date 

 

 

     

  Printed Name/Title 

 

 

  PLACE SEAL HERE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ATTEST: 

  I attest to the genuineness of the Seal, and I 

  further attest that the above named officer is 

  duly authorized to execute this document. 

Treasurer   

 

   

    

  Signature Date 

 

 

    

  Printed Name/Title 

 

 

 

        

  Federal Employer Identification Number 

 

  

  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and affixed their seals the day and

date herein above written.



  Contract ID:  IGTIA2402104 

-16- 

EXHIBITS 

 

 

   Exhibit A  Work Schedule 

 

   Exhibit B  Scope and Procedure 

 

 

  

 

  



  Contract ID:  IGTIA2402104 

-17- 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

WORK SCHEDULE 

 

 

1) Hall Road Paving & Drainage, P.I. 0016281 

 

 

The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall provide the DEPARTMENT with a detailed project schedule that reflects 

milestones, deliverables with durations for all pertinent activities to develop critical path elements.  An 

electronic project schedule shall be submitted to the DEPARTMENT after execution of this Agreement 

 

The DEPARTMENT may request additional or updated information and documentation regarding the WORK 

SCHEDULE from the LOCAL GOVERNMENT at any time.   

 

If applicable, this must include the yearly operations plan for a transit project, to be updated annually by 

the LOCAL GOVERNMENT. 

 

 

 

  



  Contract ID:  IGTIA2402104 

-18- 

EXHIBIT B 

 

SCOPE AND PROCEDURE 

 

 

1) Construction, operation and maintenance of Hall Road Paving & Drainage, P.I. 0016281 

 

  



  Contract ID:  IGTIA2402104 

-19- 

 

APPENDICES 

 

 

 

Appendix A  Local Project Delivery Application 

 

Appendix B Certificate of Compliances 

 

Appendix C Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance Act Affidavit 

 

Appendix D Local Government Resolution 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



  Contract ID:  IGTIA2402104 

-20- 

APPENDIX A 

 

LOCAL PROJECT DELIVERY APPLICATION 

for the following Projects: 

 

1) Hall Road Paving & Drainage, P.I. 0016281 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Russell R. McMurry, P.E., Commissioner 
One Georgia Center  
600 West Peachtree NW  
Atlanta, GA 30308 

 (404) 631-1990 Main Office 

 

March 20, 2024 
 

 
Mr. Michael Fletcher, County Engineer 
Lowndes County 
327 North Ashley Street 
Valdosta, GA  31601 
 
SUBJECT: PI# 0016281, Hall Road Paving & Drainage 
  Local Delivery Approval 
 
Mr. Fletcher: 
 
The Department has reviewed the TIA Local Government Application for project delivery submitted for 

the above referenced project.  The Local Delivery Application has been approved for the following phases: 

 

• Preliminary Engineering (PE) 

• Right of Way (ROW) 

• Utilities (UTL) 

• Construction (CST) 

 
A Local Agreement between the Georgia Department of Transportation and Lowndes County is required 

to be executed prior to beginning work.  A written Notice to Proceed from the Department is also required 

prior to beginning work on any project phase. 

 
Should you have any questions, or need additional information, please contact Brent Moseley at 912-530-
4391 or by email at bmoseley@dot.ga.gov . 

 
                                                                            Sincerely, 
 

                
                                                                            Kenneth Franks, 
                                                                            State TIA Administrator 
 
 
KKF:BAM 
 
Cc: Dan Bodycomb, TIA Program Manager 
 Christy Lovett, TIA Pre-Construction Manager 
 Bobby Adams, TIA Procurement Manager 
 Project File 

20-1

mailto:bmoseley@dot.ga.gov


20-2



20-3



20-4



20-5



  Contract ID:  IGTIA2402104 

-21- 

APPENDIX B 

 

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCES  

 

I hereby certify that I am a principle and duly authorized representative of Lowndes County, Georgia, whose address is 

327 N Ashley Street, Valdosta, GA  31601, and it is also certified that: 

 

I. PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS 

The below listed provisions of State Procurement requirements shall be complied with throughout the contract 

period: 

(a)  Provisions of Section Chapters 2 and Chapters 4 of the Title 32 of the Official Code of Georgia 

Annotated.  Specifically as to the County the provisions of O.C.G.A. § 32-4-40 et seq. and as to the 

Municipality the provisions of O.C.G.A. § 32-4-92 et seq.  

II. STATE AUDIT REQUIREMENT 

The provisions of Section 36-81-7 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to the “Requirement of 

Audits” shall be complied with throughout the contract period in full, including but not limited to the 

follwoing provisions: 

(a) Each unit of local government having a population in excess of 1,500 persons or expenditures 

of $ 550,000.00 or more shall provide for and cause to be made an annual audit of the 

financial affairs and transactions of all funds and activities of the local government for each 

fiscal year of the local government. 

(b) The governing authority of each local unit of government not included above shall provide for 

and cause to be made the audit required not less often than once every two fiscal years. 

(c) The governing authority of each local unit of government having expenditures of less than $ 

550,000.00 in that government’s most recently ended fiscal year may elect to provide for and 

cause to be made, in lieu of the biennial audit, an annual report of agreed upon procedures for 

that fiscal year. 

(d) A copy of the report and any comments made by the state auditor shall be maintained as a 

public record for public inspection during the regular working hours at the principal office of 

the local government.  Those units of local government not having a principal office shall 

provide a notification to the public as to the location of and times during which the public may 

inspect the report. 

(e) The audits of each local government shall be conducted in accordance with generally accepted 

government auditing standards. 

III. SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY REQUIREMENT 

The provisions of Section 36-70-20 et seq. of the Official Code of Georgia, relating to the “Coordinated And 

Comprehensive Planning And Service Delivery By Counties And Municipalities”, as amended, has been 

complied with throughout the contract period.   

 

 

_______________________   _________________________________ 

Date        Signature



  Contract ID:  IGTIA2402104 

-22- 

APPENDIX C 

 

GEORGIA SECURITY AND IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE ACT AFFIDAVIT 

 

 

Name of Contracting Entity:  Lowndes County 

 

Contract No. and Name:  IGTIA2402104 

 TRANSPORTATION INVESTMENT ACT OF 2010 PROJECT AGREEMENT 

 

By executing this affidavit, the undersigned person or entity verifies its compliance with O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91, stating 

affirmatively that the individual, firm, or entity which is contracting with the Georgia Department of Transportation 

has registered with, is authorized to participate in, and is participating in the federal work authorization program 

commonly known as E-Verify, or any subsequent replacement program, in accordance with the applicable provisions 

and deadlines established in O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91.   

 

The undersigned person or entity further agrees that it will continue to use the federal work authorization program 

throughout the contract period, and it will contract for the physical performance of services in satisfaction of such 

contract only with subcontractors who present an affidavit to the undersigned with the information required by 

O.C.GA. § 13-10-91(b).   

 

The undersigned person or entity further agrees to maintain records of such compliance and provide a copy of each 

such verification to the Georgia Department of Transportation within five (5) business days after any subcontractor is 

retained to perform such service. 

 

________________________________  

E-Verify / Company Identification Number  

 

 

___________________________________ 

Signature of Authorized Officer or Agent 

 

_________________________________ 

Date of Authorization 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Printed Name of Authorized Officer or Agent 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Title of Authorized Officer or Agent 

 

 ____________________________________ 

Date 

 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN 

BEFORE ME ON THIS THE 

 

_____ DAY OF ______________________, 20__ 

 

________________________________________  [NOTARY SEAL] 

Notary Public 

 

My Commission Expires: ___________________ 

 

 



  Contract ID:  IGTIA2402104 

-23- 

APPENDIX D 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT RESOLUTION 

for the following Projects: 

 

 

1) Hall Road Paving & Drainage, P.I. 0016281 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



  Contract ID:  IGTIA2402104 

-24- 

Please replace this page with your authorizing resolution as required by the code section  

O.C.G.A § 32-4-61.  A county shall have the authority to contract as set forth in this part and in paragraph 

(1) of Code Section 32-4-42. Any contract for work on all or part of the county road system shall be in 

writing and shall be approved by resolution which shall be entered on the minutes of such county 
 

SAMPLE RESOLUTION 

 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

 

LOWNDES COUNTY 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission Chairman and Board of Commissioners of Lowndes County, 

and it is hereby resolved, that the foregoing attached Agreement, relative to the aforementioned projects and 

that [Name] as Commission Chairman and [Name], as Clerk, be and they are, thereby authorized and 

directed to execute the same for and in behalf of said by the Commission Chairman and Board of 

Commissioners of Lowndes County. 

 

Passed and adopted this the _____________ day of __________________, 20___. 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________   BY:______________________________ 

COUNTY CLERK      CHAIRMAN 

    

 

STATE OF GEORGIA, 

 

LOWNDES COUNTY 

 

I,   [Name], as Clerk of Commission, do hereby certify that I am custodian of the books and records 

of the same, and that the above and foregoing copy of the original is now on file in my office, and was 

passed by the Commission Chairman and Board of Commissioners of Lowndes County. 

 

WITNESS my hand and official signature, this the ________ day of _______________, 

 

20_________. 

BY: __________________________________ 

CLERK OF  
 

 



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: Pronto Consulting, LLC Agreement, Amended Schedule A  
  

 

  

DATE OF MEETING: May 14, 2024   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: No impact  
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

  
(X) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(  ) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Regular Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Pronto Consulting, LLC Agreement Amended Schedule  
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: Lowndes County Probation signed a contract with Pronto Consulting in May 
2019. Pronto Consulting sent an amended schedule to the contract, changing the originally agreed-upon fee. 
The requested change is due to inflation in prices.  
  
  
OPTIONS: 1. Approve and authorize the Chairman to sign the contract. 

2. Board's Pleasure 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 
  
DEPARTMENT: Probation                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: Ferlisha Rountree 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 



AMENDED SCHEDUI.E A

MASTER SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT BETWEEN PRONTO CCNSUTTING, TLC

AND TOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA

PTATFORM COMPONENT

SUBSCRIPTION

MONTHLY FEE

Pronto Software as a Service (SAASI s1,320.00
for up to (15) users

* *Additional programming will be

billed at the current hourly rate as

agreed upon in writing.

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners

By

Name:

Title:

START DATE END DAIE

7 /O712024 061301207s

MONTHLYTOTAT S1,32O.OO

FOR 16 USERS

Pronto Consulting, LLC

s82.s0

By:

Name: Cody Paqe

Title: Chief Opera tions Cfficer

Date: Date

**Each additional users above 16



MASTER SUESCRIPTION A6REEMENT

./(This MAsTER SUSSCR|PT|ON AGREIMENI is e^tercd into on /yla.r3 I 2019 {'effective
Oate"), by and between PRONaO CONSUIT|NG, LtC, a Georgia limited ,it6,lity company wirh office5 at
106 Colony Park Drive, Suite 700, Cumming, Georgia 30040, and Lowndes County Board of Commisrioners,
327 N. A5hley Streer, Valdosta, 6eorgia 31€O1("Custome/).

1, DEf INITIONS

"Affiliate" means any enthy which directly or indirectly controls, is controlted by, or ls under (ommon
control with the subject entity. ''Conrol," for plrposes of thir definition, means dlrect o, indi.ect
ownershap or (ontrol of more than 50% of the voting interest5 of the rubiect entity.

oAgreement' means this Ma5ter Subscriptlon Agreement, the Schedules he.eto (including Schedule A
s€tting fonh the Plattorm Component Subscrlptlon for Pronto Software as a S€rvice and price therefor
beinS purchased by Customer trom pronto Consulting, tLC under this Agreement), and such other
documents, attachment5, addeoda, ard exhibiti that the partie!' authorized rep.esentativet may
mutually agree to in rr/riting from time tg time as being a prart of thjs Agaeement.

"Conteflt" means the information, documents. software, prgducts, and rervicer cootalned or made
avdilable to Customer in the course of using the platform.

"Customer's Data" means all electronic data o. information submitted by Customer o. Custome/s Usert
to the Platform.

'Malicious code" mea.l5 viruses, worms, time bomb5, Trojan hories, and other harmful or malicious code,
tiles, scripts, agen$, or pro8rams.

"OEM Prodtcts" means online, Web-accessible applications and offline sohware produats o.dered, ifany,
by Customer under an addendum executed by both parties added to Schedule A that are owned by third
pa(ies and are to be provided to Customer by PnONTO CONSUITING, ll-C on a pass-throueh or OlM basis.

"Platform" means the online, Web- accessible appllcations and platform, OEM Productt and Content for
probataon tracking and monitorin8 ot probationer compliance and status provided by PRoNTO

CONSULTING, LLC via the internet and/or other deslgnated wekites ai dessibed i. the Use. cuide, that
are ordered by Customer under Schedule A, including as5ociated oflline components but ercludis8 Third-
Party Applicationr.

"Schedule A" means the ordering document for purchases hereunder, including addeoda thereto that are
entered into between Custome. and PRONTO CONSUITING, LtC from time to time. schedule A, and each

addenda thereto, sh3ll be deemed incorporated herein by reference.

lowndes County Boar a ot Co^*istioners@

1

P,ooto cansuttinc Zg



"subscription Term" mean5 the period of time from the sta.t date to the end date specified in schedule A
fo. each subscriptio, purchaied thereunder. Each renewal of a subscription, whether automatic or in
writing, 5ha,l constitute a new Subscription Term for that subscription.

"Third-Party Applicatioos" means online, web- accessible applications and offline software products that
are provided to Customer by thi.d partie5 and that interoperate with the platform.

"User Guide' means the online user guide fo( the platform, accessible via the platform. as updattd from
time to time.

"user5' means individuals who aae autho.i?ed to ure the platform, forwhom subs.riptions to the platform
have been p!.chased rnder thir Agreement, who are located in lhe United State, or its territorles, and
who have been rupplied user identificatlons and passwords by curtomer (o. by pRONTO CONSUI-T|NG,
LLC at Cultome/5 request fo. use of the phtfo.m). Each User must be an employee of Customer aod may
not be any other person or entity withour th€ p.ior express written confnt of pBONTO CONSUITING,
LtC. 'Admin Us€rs" are a parricular type of User. with administrative thts to use the platform.

2, PLATFORM

3, US€ OF THE PTAITORM

3.1 PRONTO CONSUtTtN6, LLC'r Responsibilitier.

2.1. Provision of Platform. Subject to Customer,s compliance with this Ag.eement and timely payment
of all applicable fees due under this Agreement, pflONTO CON5ULT|NG, LLC shalt make the platform
available to customcr puriuant to this agreement and schedule A during each subsffiption Te.m for
cu5tomer's u5e in the united stater and it5 territo.ies in conformance with this ASreement. cuitomer
agrees that Cu:tome/s purchases hereunder a.e neither contingent on the delivery of any futur€
fuflctionallty o, features nor dependent on any oral or written public comments made by piONTO
CONSULTING, LLC regarding future functionatity o. features.

2.2 User Subscriptions. Unle5r otherwire specified in Schedule A, lal the platform is provided through
uter subscriptions and may be accesled by no more than the flumberofusers specified in schedule A, (b)
additional User rubscriptions may be purchased under an addendum to Sch€dule A durig the
subscriptlon Term at the pricing ai defined in such addendum, prorated for the remainder ot the
Subscrlption Term in effect at the time the additional User subscriptions are added, and (c) the added
uier subscriptions shall terminate on the sam€ date as the pre.existing user subscrlptionr. user
Subsc.iptlons are for desitnated users and cannot be shared or used by more than one user, but may be
reassigned to new Us€rs replacing former Useri who no longer require oogoing use of the platform.

2.3 Curtomer',s Affiliates. customer's Atfiliates, located in the united st3tes and it territories, may utiliie
the Platform and User subscriptions, subjed to the terms of this Agreement. Custome., howeve(, shall
remain responsible for such Affiliates' compliance with the terms of this Atreement and warrants that
Custome. has the authority to bind its Affiliate5 to the terms of thir Agreement.

l-owndes county Board ot comnissionerd9-

2.

eronto Contuttin.K



3.r.1. PRONTO CONSUtINc, l"LC 5halli (a) provide to Customer basacsupport for the ptatform asdefined
belowin Seclion 3.1.2 ("Support"); (b) use commercially reasonable lffort5 to make the platlo.m .vaila ble
24 hours a day, 7 days a week, except for: (l) planned downtime (of whlch pRONTO CONSULI|NG, t-LC sha
Bive at least five (5) businesr days notice via the platform or PRONIO CONSULTTNG, LLC'! cur.enhupport
policy, a5 described in Schedule B, and which PflONTO CONSUITING, l"tC shall schedule to the ertent
practicable dutin8 the weekend hours from 5:00 p.m. Eastern time Friday to 3t0O a.m. Eastern ttme
Monday) and (ii) any unavailability caused by circumstances beyond PRONTO CONSULTI G, ttc,s
reasooable control, inaluding without limitatiod, acts ofGod, acts ofEovernment, flood, fire, earthquake5,
civil unrelt, acts of terror, strikes or other labor problems {other than those involvint PRONTO

CONSUITING, LtC's employees), or tnternet service provider failures or delays; and {c) provide the
Pialform on,y in accordance with applicable laws aod government regulations.

3.1-2 PRONTO CONSUITING, ILC rhall provide to Cu5tome/s Admin Users the levelof Support rpecified
in this Agreement. PRONTO CONsUtTING, t-LC will provide such Support under PRONTO CONSUIT|NG,
LLC's customer support policies for the Platform in effect Benerally for pronto Consulting, LLC's purchase15
of the Plaiform as appllcable at the time the Suppo.t 5ervices are .endered. The .urrent version of the
Support policv for the Platform can be found in the ptatlorm on the Support tab, The customer suppo.t
policy tor the Platform, incorporated in rhis Agreement, is subiect to chaoge at pRONTO CONSULTING,
LlC5 discretion upon thiny (30) days prbr written noti€e to Curtomer. However, pRONTO CONSUT-TING,

LLC wlll not materially reduce the level of Support provided for the platform during a Subscription Term
for which subscription fees specified in Schedule A are payable under this Atreement.

3.2. Custome/s Responsibilities. Customer 5hall (a) be responrible for Users' compliance with this
Agreement, {b) be iolely responsible for the accuracy, qualiiy, integrity, and leEality of Cujtomer's Oata
and of the means by which Customer acquired 3nd u5e5 Customer's 0ata, (c) use commercially ree$nable
elforts to prevent unauthorazed ac.ess to or use of the plarform, and notify PRONTO CONSULTTNG, LLC
ptomptly of any such unauthorired access or use, and {d) Use the Platform only in accordance with the
UJer Guide and applicable laws and governmert regulations. Custome. shall not knowingly {i) make the
Platform available to aoyone other than U5ers, (ii) sell, res€ll, renr, or leaie the Phtform, (iii) use the
Platform to 5tore ortransmit infringing, libelous, or otherwlse unlawful or tortious material, o. to store or
trsrltmit material in violation ofthird-pa,ty privacy or data protection rights, (iv) use the Platform to store
or transmil Malicious Code, {v} interfere wath or disrupt the inteBrity or performance of the Platform or
third-party datB contained therein, or (vi) attempt to tain una{rthorized access to the Platform or its
related systems or networks.

3.3 Acceptable Ule. Customer acknowledte and .gree that PRONTO CONSUtf|NG, tLc does not monitor
o. police the cootent of communications or data of Customer or Custome/i Users uploaded ir or
trantmitted through the Platform, and that PRONTO CONSULTING, tLC shall not be rerponsible for the
content of any such communicat:ons or traosmissions, Customer shall use the Platform exclusively for
authorized and letal purposes, consietent with allappli(able laws and regulations. Custom€r agrees not
to knowingly load into the Platform any cootent or data which (.) is libelous, defamatory, obscene,
pornographic, abusive, ha.aising, or threateoing; (b) containr viru5es or other contaminatlng or
dest,uctive features; (c) violates the right5 ot others, such ar data which infringes on any lntellectual
property rithts or violates any right of privacy, publi(ity, or data protection; or (d) otherwise vlolate! any
applicable law (including, without limitation, the laws and regulations governing unfair competitlon).

3

,,.^
Lowndes county Boa d of commissionerc (fr- eroato Consulting - f{



PRONTO CONSUITING, LIC rererves th€ right to delete, move, or edit any of Custome/r Dara that
PRONTO CONSULTING, tLC maydetermine, in ?RONTO CONSUT-TtNG, LLC,5 sole bl1t reasonabte discretion,
violates this Agreemenl.

3.4. Usage Limitation5. The Platform may be slbject to other limitationr, ruch as, aor example,limits on
disk stora8e space and on the numbe. of calls Customer is permltted to make againrt PRONTO
CONSULTING, Ltc's applicatioa protramming interface. Any 5uch limitations are specified in the Urer
Guide and are applicable gene.ally to subscribers of the platform.

4. THIRD-PARTY PROVIDTRS AND OEM PROOUCTS

4.1. Acquisition ol Third,Party P.oducts and Services. Any acquisition by Customer of third-party
products or services, includinS but not lirnited to Third-party Applications and implementation,
cuslomization, and othe. €onsulting 5ervices, 3nd any exchange of data between Customer and any third-
party provider, ls rolely between Customer and the applicable third-party provider, pRONTO

CONSULTING, LtC does nol warrant o. support third-party products or services, whether or not they sre
designated by PRONTO CONSUtTtNG, LtC as',certified,,or otherwire, €xcept as specitied in Schedule A.
No pu.cha5e of third-pany products or services is requlred to uie the platform.

4.2. Third-Party Applications and Cuttome/s Oata. lf Customer installr or enables thtd-party
components, whether Third-Pany Applications or OtM products, for ure wlth the platform, Customer
acknowledges that PRONIO CONSULTING, LLC may allow providers of those products to accest
Customer'5 0ata, to the extent not p.ohibited by applicable law, rule, or regulation, as required for the
interoperation of such products with the platfo.m. pRONTO CONSUT-TtNG, LtC shall not be responsible for
any disclosure, modlfication, ordeletion ofCustomer's Oata .esulting frqm.ny5uch access by Third-pa.ty
Application providers or OEM Produ(t providers.

4.3. OEM Product5. Customer acknowledges that the OEM p.oductr are p.oprietary products and
materials of PRoNTo coNsuLTtNG, tLC's suppliers as identified in schedule 4 which are obtain€d under
a license from such suppliers. Customer'5 use of any OEM products 5hall be subject to, and Curtomefihall
(a) comply with this Agreement and any applicable ticense agreement for OEM products that is attached
.s an exhibit to this Agreement or otherwlse p,ovided to Customer in conjunctlon with an OEM product

{"oEM license"), (b) only use the oEM products in conjunction with rhe ptatform, {c)have no bro.der use
rights wlth respect to the oEM Products than customer has to the platform in the form provided by
PRONTO CONSUITING, tl.C and as described in the User Guide, and (d) onty have such rights to OEM
Products for the applicable subscription Term(s). tn the event oi a conflict betweer an oEM License and
this Agreement, the terms of the OEM License shalt prevall with respect to the applicable O€M froduct.
Notwithstandin8 anything herein to the contrary, PRONTO CONSULT|NG, LLC makes no wlrranty with
respect to any oEM Products provided under this Agreement. customer's sole remedy with .espe€t to
5uch oEM Products shall be pursoant to the original licensor's warranty, ifany, to cusromer, to the extent
permitted by the orieinal licensor or to pronto Conrulting, t-LC which licenso/s w.rranty it asriSns to
Customer. PRONTo CONSUT-TtNG, tLC may add and/or substitute equivalent product or service for any
OEM Prgducts in the event of unavailabillty or changes of platform .equi.ement!.

5. FEES AND PAYMENT

Lowndes county Boa rd of commissionecs @

4

Pronto Consulting



5.1. User Fees. Customer shall pay all fees specified in Schedule A. lxcept as otherwise specified herein
or an Schedule A, {a} lees are quored aad payable tn United States dollars, {b) fees are based on
subscriptions pu.chased and not a.lual usage, (c) payment obligations otherwise due under this
ABreement are non-cancelable and fees paid otherwise due under this Agreement are non-refuodable,
and (d) the subscription5 purchased cannot be decrea5ed during tt e .elevant 5ubscription Term.

5.2. lnvoicinB and Payment. PRONTO CONSULTIN6, l"IC will invoice Customer in advance and otherwise
in accordance with Schedule A. Unless otherwise itated ln khedule A, invoiced charges are due net 30
days from the invoice date. Customer i5 respon5ible for malntaining complete and accurate billing and
contact informdtion with PRONTO CONSUtTtNG, t-t"C.

5.3. Overdue CharBes. lf a ny charges othe.wire due under this Atreement are not received by PRONTO
CONSUITING, l-ac from Customer within thirty (30) days after the due date therefor, then at PRONTO
CONSUITING, LIC'S dlscretion, (a) such charges tnay accrue late inte.ert at the rate of 1.5% of the
outstanding balance per month, o. the maximum rate permitted by law, whichever ls lower, from the date
such payment was due until the date paid, and/or (b) pRONTO CONSULTTNG, LtC may condition future
subscription renewals on payment terms shorter than those sperified in Section S.2 {lnvoicinE.nd
Payment).

5.4. Suspension ofService and Acceleration. Itarly amount owiog by Custome. under this agreement fo.
PRONTO CONSULTING, LLC's services is sixty (EO)or more days overdue, PRONTO CONSULTTNG, .C may,
wlthout limiting PqOl{TO CONSUT-TING. LLC5 other rights and remedie!, upon prior written notice to
Customer suspend all access to the platfo.m until such amountr .re paid in full.

5.5. Payment Disputes. PRONTO CONSULITNG, LLC rhallnot exercise pRONTO CONSULTING, LLC,s,ights
underSection 5.3 (overdue charEes) or 5.4 lsuspension of Service and Acceleration) lf the applicable
charges a.e undrr .Easonable and good-taith dlspute and Customea and pronto Coo5ulting, l-LC are
cooperating diligently to resolve the di:p!te.

5.6. Taxes. Unless otherwise stated. PROMIO CONSUITING, LLC,5 fee5 do not include any taxes, levies,
duties, or similar governmental assessments of any nature, includinE but not limited to value-added, sales,
use, o. withholding laxes, assessable by any local, state, provincial, fedetal, or foreign jurisdictaon
(collectively, "Taxes")- customer is responiible to. payang allraxe! s55ociated with customer's purchases
hereunder. lf PRONIO CONSU|"T|N6, Llc hrs the legal obligation to pay or collect Taxes tor which
Customer is re5ponsible under thil parag.aph, the appropriate amolnt shall be invoiced to and paid by
cuttomer, unless customer provides pRoNro coNsuLTrNG, LLC with a varid tax exemption certificate
authorized by the appropriate taxint authority. provided, however, and for clarity, pRONfO COl.lSUl-TtNG,
LLC i5 solely responsible for taxes assessable against PRONTO CONSUT-TING. LLC based on PRONTO
CONSULTING, L!C's income, property, and employees.

6. PROPRIETARY RIGHIS

6.1. Reservation of Rights, Subject to the limlted rlghts express,y granted hereunder to Customer,
PRoNTo coNsuLrlNG, LLc, and pRoNTo coNsurrNG, tLc's censors, reserve.I .ight5, tifle, and interest
in and to the Platform, iocruding arr rerated intelectuar property riBhts. No rithts are granted to cu5tomer

Lowndes county Boa rd of commissioners @

5

Pronto Consulting



hereunder othe. than as expressly let forth hereio

6.4. Eohancement Requests. PRONTO CONSULTING, t-t"C and PRONTO COtiSULTlNG, tLC,s licen5orj shall
have a royalty-free, wo.ldwide, transferable, sublicensable, iarevocabte, perpetual license to use or
lncorporate into the Platfo.m any enhancement requesrs provided by Customer. including Use6, relating
to the ope.ation of the Platform.

5.5. [lntentlonally Lefr Blank]

7. CONFIDENTIAI.ITY

7.1. Definitlon ot Confidential lnformation. As used herein, "Confidential tnformation,, means all
confidential informatlon disclosed by a party (,,Dircloslog party,,l to the other p.rty {,,Re€eivi.t party,,},
whether electronically. orally, or in writing, that i5 desitnated as confidential or that reasonably ihould
be unde.stood to be confklential 8iveo the nature of the information and the circumstance5 of disclosure,
Customet's confiden(al Information shall include Customer,s Data; PRONTO CONSUIT|NG, U-C,s
confidential rnform.tion ihalt include the plaarorm, ihe user Gulde, aod the terms and conditions of this
ASreement and schedule Aj and confidential tnformation of each party shall include its business and
marketing plans, technology and technical info.mation, product pla ns and designs, and business processes
die€losed by such pany to the other. However. confidential Info.mation (other than custome/s oata)
shall not include any information that (a) ls or becomes generally known to the public ryithout breach of
aoy obligation owed to the Oisalosing Party, (b) was known to the Receiving party prior to its dirclosure
by the DisclosintPany wirhout brearh ofany obligation owed to the Discloilng pa.ty. {c) is received from
a thlrd party whhout breach of any obligation owed to the DisclosinS party, o. {d) was independently
developed by the Receiving Party wlthqut rcference to, o. r€liance upon, the confidential tnformation oi
the Disclosing Pa.ty.

Lowndes County Boar d ot Commisstoners@-

6

Pronto consulting

5.2. Restri€tion5. Curtomer shall not knowingly (aJ permit any third party to accesl the platform except
ai permitted herein or in Schedule A, (b) create derivate workr based on the platfo.m, (c) copy, frame, or
mirror any pa.l or content ofthe Platform, other than copylng or framing on Cu5tome/s own intranets o.
otherwise fo. Custome/s owr internal business purposes. {d) reverse entineer the platform, or (e}access
the Platform in order to (i) b{rild a competitive product or seNi.e or (ti} copy any features, functloo, or
graphics of the Platform.

6.3. Ownerrhip of Curtomer's Data. As between PRONTO CONSUI,TING, LtC and Customer, Clstomer
exclusively owns all rights, title, and interest in and to Customer,s Data. Customer grantr PRONTO
CONSULTING, lLc and PRONfO CONSULTTNG, [LC'5 cont.acto,s a lrmited, personal, tran5ferdble, non,
exclusive license to use Customer'. Data, to the extent permitted byapplicable law, rules, and regulatlons,
for the sole purpose, and solely as required, to provide the plarform, includinB reportr, analyticJ, and
other summary data, to Customer aod othe. subscribers lo the platform (provided. however, that no
p€.sonally identafiable information of Customer's cu5tomers will be sha.ed by pRONTO CONSULTING, LLC
with any party other than C6tomer, Custome/5 Affiliates and users). Customerrepresent! and warants
that it has obtained and will maintaan all consents required by applicable law, rules and .egllationr
necessary for the rtorage, transmission, and use of Curtomer,s Oata as described ln this Agreement.



7.2. Protection of Contidential lnformarioo. Except a! otherwise permttt€d in wrlting by the Diralosing
Party, (a) the Receiving P.rty shall use the r.me degree of care that it uses to protect th€ confidentiality
of its own confidential infgrmatlon of like kind (but in no event less than reasonable ca.e) not to disclose
or use any Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party for any turpo5e outside the 5cope of thi5
AS.eement and {b) the Reaeiving Party shall limit access to Confidential lnformalion of the Oisclosin8 Party
lo those of lts employees, contractors, and agents who need such access fo. purposes consistent with this
Agreement.

7,3. Protection of Customer's Data. Without limiting the above, pfiONTO CONsULTING, LLC shall
maintain appropriate admirist.ative. physical, and technical s.feguard5 for protection of the 5e(urity,
€onfidentiality, and iotetrity of Custome/s Oata. Except as otherwise expreisly p.ovided in this
Agre€ment, PRONTO CONSUtTING, U-C shall not (a) modifo Custome,/s Oata, (bldisclose Custom€r's Data
except as compelled by law in accordance wlth Section 7.4 (Compelled oiicloJure) or as expressly
permitted in writinS by Customer, or {c) accels Cu5tomer's oata except to provide the platform, to
exercise the rights under Section 6.3 (Ownership ofCustomer's Datal, o. to prevent or addreis service or
technical problems, or at Cu5tomer's request in connection with customer support maters.

7.4. Compelled 0a5closure. The Receiving Party may disclose Confidential lnformation of the Dis(losing
Party if it i5 compelled by ldw to do ro, provided rhe ReceivinB party Bives the Oiscloring party prior notice
of such compelled di5closure {to the extent leBally pe,mitted) and rea5onable assiltance, at the DscloiinB
Party's cost, if the Disclosing Partv wishe! to contest the disclosure. tf the Receiving party is compelled by
law to di5clore the Disclo5ing Party's Confideotial hformation as p.n of a civil proceedint to which the
Ditclosing Pa.ty ir a party, and rhe Disclosing party is not contesting the disclosure, the Oisclosing party
will relmburse the Receiving Party for its rearonable cost of compiling and providing secure accelr tg Juch
Confi dential hfo.mation.

8. WARRANTIES AND DISCLAIMERS

8.1. PRONTO CONSULTING, LLC'S Warranties. Except as speciried in $ction 8.4, pRONTO CONSUiTtNG,
LLC warrants that the Platform shall perform materially in accordance with the U5€r Guide and the
functionality of the Platform will not be materially dec.eased during a Subs(ription Term. For any breach
of either such war.anty, Custome/s excluslve remedy shatl be as provided in Section 11.1 (Termination
for Cause) and Section 11.4 (Refund or Paymeot upon Termination) below.

8.2. Mutual Wa.ranties. Each party represents and warrants that {a}it har the legal power to enter into
this Atreement and {b} it will not knowintly transmit to the other party afly Malicious Code (except for
Malicious Code previously transmitted ro the warranting pa.ty by the other party).

8.3. Disc|aimcT, EXCEPT AS EXPRESSTY PROVIOED HEREIN, NEITHIR PARTY MA(Es ANY wARRANTI€S OF
ANY KINO, WHETHER €XPRTSS, IMPI-IED. STATUTORY, OR OT}IERWISE, ANO TACH PARTY AN' THEIR

IIC€NSORS 5PECI'ICAILY DISCLAIM AIT IMPI.IED WARRANTIES, INCTUOING ANY WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTAEILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICUIAR PURPOSE, NON.INFRINGEMENT, UNTNTTRRUPTED OR

ERROR.FREE SERVICE, ERROR CORiECTION, AVAILASLITY, ACCURACY, AND ANY AND AtL IMPLIEO
WARRANTIES ARISING FROM STATUTE, COURSE OF DEALING, COURSE OF PEfiFORMANCE, OR U5A6E OT
TRAOE, TO THE MAXIMUM €XTENT PERMITTED 8Y APPLICABTE LAW. Custome. acknowledges that

Lowndes County Boa d olCommissioner@

1

Pro.to ConsultinB



PRoNTo coNsul-llNc, LLc doej nor control the transfer or d.ra over telecommunications faailities,
including the intarnet. PRONTO CONSUT-ftNG, LLC does no( warrant secure operatjon of the platfo.m or
that PRONTO CONSULTIN6, LLC will be able to prevent third-party disruptions of the platfo.m. Cuitomer
acknowledges fu.ther rhat the platfo.m may be rubiect to limitations, delay5, and other problems
inherent in the use of the internet aM electronic communications. PRONTO CONSULIING, Ltc k rot
rerpon5ible for any delays, delivery failures, or other damage resulting from such problems with the use
of the internet or electronia communications.

8.4 OtM Products. Warranties applying to the OEM products, If anv, are made solely by the thi.d-party
owner of iuch OEM P.oduct and are limited to those offered by the applicable third-party owner of the
OEM Product to Custome. in the applicabte OEM License, if any. pRONTO CONSULTTNG, Lt-C MAKts NO
WARRANTI€S WIIH RESPECT TO 5UCH PROOUC$.

9. MUTUALINOEMNIFICATION

9.1. lndemnification by PRONTO CONSUtTtNG, t-LC. pRONTO CONSUtTtNG, LLC shalldefend Customer
againstany claim, demand, suit, orproceeding made orbroughtagainrtCu5tomerbya th,rd partyalleglng
that the use ol the Platform as permitted he.eunder infrintes or misappropriates the us lnt€llectual
property rights of such thi.d party or violates applicable law (for purposes ol this Sedion 9.1, "Claim
against Custome/'), and shall indemnify Curtome. for any damages flnally awarded againrt, and for
r€aronable attorney's fees lncurred by, Customer in connection with any such Claim against Customer
that is speciffcally attributable to 5uci Claim again5t Customer, or those costs and damages agreed to in
a monetary settlement of srich Claim against Customec provided, that Customer (a) promptv tives
PRONIO CONSULIING, LLC written notice of the Ctaim a8ainst Cu5tomer; (b) gives pRONTO CONSUIT|NG,
LLc sole control of the defense and set ement of the claim agatnst customer {provided that pf,oNTo
coNsuLrlNc, tLc may not settle any claim atainst customer unless the set0ement u.lconditlonally
releases Custome. ot all liability fo. the Claim atainst Customer); and {c} provides to PRONTO
CONSULTING. LLC alt reason.ble assislance, at pIONIO CONSUtTtNG, LLc,s exgense. Without lirniting the
forego;ng, if the Platform becomet o. in PRONTO CONSULTTNG, LLC,s opinion Ir tikely to become, the
sub.iect of a Claim against Curtomer, PRONTO CONSULTING, tLC m.y, at PRONTO CONSUT-I|NG, LtC,s
optlon and expe.ie, eithe. (xl procure for Customer th€ right to contioue lawfully usio8 the allegedly
infringing or misappropriated materials without any material losr or chante in furcflonalityj (y) replace or
modify th3 same so that they become non-infringing without any material loss or ch.nte in functiomtity;
or {z) terminate custome/s right to use all or part of the platform and Bive customer a refund or credit
(at PRONTO CONSUITING, LLC's discretion) for the feei actual,y paid by Customer to PRONTO
CONSUITING, l-LC fo. the prior twetve-month perlod for the relevant subscriptionr ar of the d.te of
termination, less a reasonable allor,vance for the period of time customer actuallv used the platform.
Notwithstandlng the fo.e8oing, PRONTO CONSUT-TIN6, ttc will iave no obligation of defense or
indemnification o. otherwise to the extent any ctaim or demand ir based upon {l) any use of the platrorm
not in iccordance with this Agreement and the User Guide; (2) an OEM product or a Thlrd-party
Applic.tion, (3) any modification of the platform made by or content provided by Customer without
PRoNTo coNsuLrlNG, LLc's prior written consent; {4) curtome/s continued alle8edlv infringing activity
after beint notified thereofand provided modification!, replacements, or otherremedies that woald h.ve
avoided the alle8ed infringement or m;tappropriation.

9.2. lndemnification by Customer. Customer shall defend PRONTO CONSUIT|NG, LIC against any daim,

8

lowodes county Boa rd ol commissioners@ PronloConsullrr'p/8f



demand, suit, o/ proceeding made or brought aSainst pRONTO CONSULTTNG, u-C bya third partyalleging
(a) that Custome/s Oata, or Customer's use of the platfo.m ih violation of thi5 Agreement, infri0tes or
misappropriates the US lntellectual propeny rightr of a third party or violates applicable law or {b}a claim
arising from the breach by Customer, Customer's Affiliates, or Users of the Acceptable Use poli(y as
described in Section 3.3 of this Agre€ment, (collectively and individually for the purposes of this Section
9.2, "Claim against PRONTO CONSULTING, tLC') aod shalt indemnify pRONTO CONSULTING, tr,C for any
damage5 finally awarded against, and for rea50nable atto.oey's fees incured by, pRONTO CONSUIT|NG,
ItC in connection wlth any such Claim against PRONTO CONSULING, LLC that are specifically attributable
to such Claim againrt PRONIO CONSULTING, LLC, or those cost5 and damages agreed to in a mooetary
settl€ment of such CIaim against PRONTO CON5Ut-TlNG, LLC; provided, that pRONTO CONSUtTtNG, Ll,C
(a) promptly gives Customer written notice of the Claim against pRONTO CONSUmNG, tLC; (b)gives
Cuslomer !ole control of the defense and settlement of the Claim against PRONTO CONSU[TtNG, tLC
{provided that Customer may not settle any Claim against PRONTO CON5UITING, LLC unlers the
settlement unconditionally relea5es PRONTO CONSU(T|NG, LLC of all liability fo. the Claim against
PRONTO CONSULTING, Lt-C); and {c) provide to Custome. all reasonable assistance, at Custome/s
expenSe.

9.1. Excluslve Remedy. This Section 9 (Mutual lndemniflcation) states the indemnifying pary,i sole
llability to, and the iodemnified party's exclusive remedy against, the other party for any type of third-
party claim for infringement, or misappropriation.

10, TIMITATION OF IIASILITY

10.1. timitation of Liability. EXCEPT FOR A PARTY'S tNOEMNtflCATtON OBUGATTONS AS SET tOtTH tN
sECIION 9 (MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION), IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY'S AGGRTGATE TIA8ILITYONE
TO THE OTHER ARISING OUT OF OR RELAT.D IO THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER IN CONTRACI, IOffI OR
UNOES ANY OTHEB THEORY OF I.IABII-ITY, TXC€€D THE TOTAL AMOUNT PAID 8Y CUSTOMES H€REUNDER
OR, WITH RESPECT TO ANY SINGI,€ INC'OENT, THE AMOUNI PAID 8Y CUSTOMER HEREUNDER IN IHE 12
MONTHS PRECEOING THE INCIO€NT. THE FOREGOING SHAI-L NOT I.IMIT CUSTOMER'S PAYMENT
OELIGATIONS UNDTR SECTION 5 (FEE5 AND PAYMENT),

10.2. €xclusion of Consequential and Relared Dama8es. lN NO EVENT SHALT EtTHfR pARTy OR THflR
I.ICENSORS HAVE ANY I.IASILITY TO THE OTH€R PARTY FOR ANY IOST PROFIT' REVENUES, DATA OR USE,
OR OTHER ECONOMIC ADVANTAGE, OR FOR AI{Y INOIBECT, sPECIAI,, INCID€NTAI, CONSEQUENTIAI,
COVER, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH THE PTATIORM,
OEM PiOOUCTS, OR THIS AGREEMENT, INCTUDING 8UT NOT TIMiTED TO THE USE OR INAEILITIYTO USE
THE SAME OR FOR ANY CONIENT, OR ANY INTERRUPTION IN SERVI'E, HOWEVER CAUSEO, WHETHER IN
CONTRACT, TORT, OR UND€R ANY OTH€R THEORY OF TIAEII.'TY, AND WHETHER OR NOT THE PARIY HAS
B€TN ADVISED OF THE POSSIsIIITY OF SUCH DAMAG€s. THE FOREGOING DISCI.AIMER SHALI NOT APPI.Y
TOTHE EXTENT PROHIBITED 3Y APPI.ICAELE I,AW.

11, TERM AND TERMINATION

11.1. Term of Agreement. Thls Agreement commences on the Effective Date and continues until all
subscriptjons granted in accordance with this Agreement have expired or been terminated.

Lowndes county Boar a ol conmtssioners@

9

Pronto C0nsulting



11.2- Term of Subscriptions. Subscrlption5 purchased by Customer commence on the startdate ip€cified
io Sthedule A ard continue for the Subsc.iptioo Term specified therein. Except as otherwise specified in
Schedule A, all subscriptions ihall automatically renew for addltional periods equal to the expiring
Subscription Term or one year {whichever is shofter), provided, however, either party may terminate this
Ag.eement aod Subscriptions for convenience upon thirty (30) prior written notice to the other party.

11.3. Termination for Cause. A party may terminate thir Agreement for (aUse: {a) upoo 30 day! written
notice lo the other party of a materlal breach if such breach remains uocured at the expiration of such
period or (b) if the olher party becomes the subj€ct of a petition in bankrupt(y o. any other proceeding
relating to ihsolvency, receiver5hip, liq!idation, o. as5ignment lor the benefat ofcreditors.

11.4. Refund or Payment upon Terminatioo. Upon any termination fo. caqse by Customer, PRONTO
CONSULTING, LLC shall ref!nd Customer any prepaid fees covering the remainder of the Sublcription
Ierm after the eflective date of termlnaflon. Upon any termination for caure by pRONTO CONSULTING,
LtC, Custorrer shall pay any unpaid fees covering the Subscription Term throuSh the effective date of
termination. lo no event shall any termination relieve Customer of the obligation to pay any fees
otherwise payable under this Agreement to PRONTO CONSULTTNG, U-C ,or the perbd prior to the
effective date of termination,

11.5. Return of Custome/s Data. Upon request by Customer made within sixty (60) days after the
effective date of termination of this Agreernent, PRONTO CONSULTTNG, lLc will make available to
Customer for download a file of Custome/s Oata in comma reparated value (.csv) or Mi$o5oft Exc€l (.xt5)
format along with attachment5:n their natjve format. After 5uch 6O-daV period, pRONTO CONSUT-TING,
LtC shall have no oblitation to maintain o. provide any of Customer's Data and shall theteafter, unless
legally prohibited, delete all of Custome/s Data !n PRONTO CONSULIING, t-LC,j systems or othe.wise in
PRONTO CONSULTING, LLC'5 possesrion or under PRONTO CONSULTIN6, LtCs control (subiect to the
onSoinS rights under Section 6).

11.5. Survivi.lg Provisions. Section 5 (Feer and paymedt),6 (proprietary Rights), 7 {confidentiality), 8.1
{Pronto Consultin8, LLC'S Wa anties), 8.3 {Disclaimer), 9 (Mutual tndemnificarion}, 10 (timitation of
tiability), 11.4 (Refuod or Payment upon Termination), 11.5 {Beturn ofCustome/s 0ata), and 12 (General
Provisions) shall survive any termination or expiralion of thisAgreement_

12 6ENERAL PROVISIONS

12.1. Export Compliance. Each party shall compty with the export laws and .egulations of the United
States in providing and usin€ the Platform. Without limiting th€ foregoin& (a) each pa.ty rep.esents that
it is rot named o. any U.S. goyernment list of persons or enttfles prohlbited from receiving erports and
lb)Cultomer shall not knowingly permit Use15 to access or use the platform in violation olany U.S. erport
embargo, prohibition, or.estriction.

12.2. Relatjorship of the Partier. The parties are independent contractors. This Atreement doe! not
iteate a partoership, franchise, ioint venture, ageocy, fid\rciary, or employment relationship between the

Lownde5 couoty Board of commissioners @

10

Pronto Consulting



Pa.ties

12.3. No Third-Party Benenciaries. Thi5 Agreernenl i5 for the benefit of th€ partiej and their ruccegso.s
aod permitted assigns and doe5 not confer any rights or benefits on any third party, includin8 any
employee of a party, any client of a pany, or any employee of a client of a party. NotwithstandinB the
fo.egoing, th€ panies acknowledge that OEM product providerr mav be direct and intended third-party
beneliciaries of this Agreement and may be entitled to enforce it dlrectly against either parry lo the extent
this Agreement relater to O!M Producti, ifany.

12.4. Notices. All notices required to be given under the terms of this Agreement must be in writin&
postage or shipping charges prepaid, seot by both U.S. postat Service reEular mailand eithercertified mait
rett rn receipt requerted, U.5. Postal Service Expresr Mail, UpS, or FederalExpress, to the indivaduals and
addresre5 specified below. Notices are effective upon receipt.

tO Customer: Lownde5 County Soard of Commissioners

327 N. Ashley Street

3'' Floor
Valdosta, Geortia 31601
Attn: Countv Mana8er

Pronto Coniulting, LLC

106 Colony Park Drive
Suite 700
Cummin& Georgia 30ol10

ATTN: Legal

12.5. Waive. and Cumulative Remedies. No failure o. delay by either party in exercising any.ight under
this A8reement 5hall con5titute a waiver of that right. Other than as expresslv stated herein, the rcmedie!
provided herein are in addition to, and not exclusive oi any other remedies of a party at law or in equity.

12.5. severability. lf any provision of thi5 Agreement is held by a court of competent iurisdiction to be
conlrary to law, the provislon 5hallbe modified by the court and interpreted so as be5t to accompllsh the
objectives ofthe ori8inal provision to the fullest extent permitted by law, and the remaining provirions of
this Agreement shall remain ineffect.

12.7. Arsignment. A party maynot assign ordelegate anyofit5 rights or obligations hereunder, whether
byoperation of law or otherwire, without the prior wrltten consent of the other party, Notwithstarding
the foregoing, Customer may asri8n this Agreement in its entirety {including, without limitatlon, the
rights granted hereunder) in connection with a merger, acqui5ition, corporate reorganization, or rale of
all or substantially all of its assets to an Affiliate or third party, in each case only if such Affiliate or third

Lowndes county Soar d ol commissioners @

11

tronto consulting l/fl

TO PRONTO CONSULTING, LTC:



party is not a direct competitor of PRONTO CONSUIT|NG, Ll-C. Subject to the foregoin& this Agreement
shallbindandiouretothebenefitoftheparties,theirrespectivesuccesso(s,andpermittedassig.

12.8. Applicable Law and Venue. The validity, interpretation, and conrtruction of this Agreement willbe
toverned by and cor:strued in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia. The patties agree to the
exclusive .iurisdictio n and venue of rhe state and federalcourts sitting in Lownd€s County, Georgia for any
dirpute arisint from or relating to thir Agreement.
12.9. flntentionally [eft glaflk]

12,10. Ilntentionally Left Blank]

12.11. €ntire Agreement. This A8reement, including all Schedules (including Schedule A), exhibit5 and
addenda hereto, constitutes the entire agreement between lhe parties and supersedes all prior and
contemporaneous agreements, proposals, o. .epresentations, written or oral concerning its rubject
matter. Ng modificatioo, amendment, or waiver of any provision of this Ag.eement 5hall be eflective
unless in wrltlng and either signed or accepted electronically by an autho.ized representative of the party
against whom the modification, amendment, or waiver is to be asserted. However, to the extent of any
conflict or inconsisten.y between the provisions in the body of this Agreement and any Schedules
(includiog Schedule A), exhibit or addendum hereto, the terms of such Schedutes (including Scheduh A),
exhibit, and addendum, 5hall prevail. Notwithstanding any languaBe to the contrary therein, no terms or
conditions stated in Custome/s purchase o.de. or other order documentation (excl{,ding the S(hedules
to this Agreement) shall be incorporated into o. fo.m any part of this Agreement unless si8oed by an
authori.ed representative of both parties, aod all ruch terms or conditions shall be null andvoid.

12.12. Georgla taw Addendum. Attached hereto as Schedule D i! an Addendum that is an integ.al part
of lhis Master Subscription Agreement.

The parties have caused thi5 Agreement to be executed and do each herebv warrant and
repretent that their re5pective signatory named below is duty authorired by all necessary and appropriate
corporate action to execute this Agreement.

lowndes county Boar d of commissioners@

72

erontoConsdting ,M



Lownder County Geortia Eoard of Commirsloners Pronto Consulfng, Ltc

By: By:

Name SillSla Namei StevePese

Tltle: Chairman oftowndes county Board of Commissioners Title: chief

o"t", tOlL4 3/. Zolz

officer

Lowndes County Boar d of Commissioners @

13

Pronto Consulting

a4

0,,", JUlr,y 3.Q, fDtQ



SCHEDUL' A

MASTER SUESCRIPTION AGREEMENT 8'TWEEN PRONTO CONSUITING, TtC
ANO I-OWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA

PI,AIFORM COMPON:NT MONTHI.Y TEE (YEAR lIg8U} START DATE
SUESCRTPTTON (YEAR r.)

ENOOAIE(YEAR

1)

Pronto software as a Servlce for
p.obation trackine and monitorrns
of Drobationer comDliance and

+$1.056.00

'1S1320.00

Di5counted monthly imount:
5r-056

" Monthlv fee amount of
S1320.00 rfdi5countpd lee nor oard
bv the LO6davof the Month.

' Due Dater lirtt ofavery month
Oiscount: 20% lfpaid by due date-
of the 1o,r drv of rhe mo th
Terms: discoirnt aemored aftea i4I-
Elqllldelinquent payments (5!!1-
day gr.ce pedodl
Eli5€e{r€t€4F€"th{y-i6€.lc*
5{+56
on€ ti.ne ret-op lee of.:tl5g!99_d!g
uoon JiEnini of aareement.
!:-M66*++€-a*€git-€{

$*:e,e0.rt{€r+ii*bt+he+s+
Ci{€+layh€a$+a6e5ide.e+
d€I€qrer{+ao}fl i*by{he5$€l

tj:$#€g€e4r+apoi6l€"iieet
i*4€ar€al:

t. 2019t 20201

status (SAAS) for t15l rs and one

l1l Administrative User.

lownder County Board of Comm15sioners Pronto Con5ulting, l"LC

gy:

Name: StevePase

By

oate:rMz,- 3/. Ao/ zDate c4

/

I

Name: EillSlaushter

Title: Chairman of towndes County Eoard ofCommissioners Ti e: ChlefExecutive Offlcer



SCHEOULE B
PRONTO SOFTWARE

SUPPORT POLICY
Puaposa

Pronto consultlng ('wc', "u5', or 'our') customer support serviaes are provrded to ensure our customer cyou.
or _Your-) rec.ive varrrable support to .ddrers lssues ln a hrleay tsshloo, mihaga upgrades and test cnvironmnts,
and receive elficlent help lo run the PRONTO ontine, Web-a..cessibte apptic.tin an_a phvonn We p.ovic,e to yorl
under an orde. form ("P,atform-).

Wh.n You Can Obt.lh Support

suppod wlll b€ p.ovided to help Your dcCandted rdministrato.s for ttre Ptat orm CAdmin Use6.) iddress E ror5.

An *Enor'means any verlfi€blc and reproducible f.ilure of tlE Plalfo.m to 6lbsta.tiatly conform !o the sp<cjfications
5et forth in the product manual for the Plaform, Bs t pdated From time to dme,.vaitabie with rhc pl.dbrntt ("Us6

nclude any such fa ure that ls ca used by: (a ) the use or oflerdt on of the ptatformGuldc'). Thc trrm i€rror. does not I
wiLh 8ny other aoatw..a or plogrammrng languages or in an envllonanenl other tian that lntended or recommanded

by U5; (b) hodlicatlons to the ptatform not m6dr by Us; and/or (c) a'ly bug, defect or enor h
software used wlth the Platform

How You Can Obt ln Support

or any other f.ilure of such soltwa.e to co[form to lts sp€cl6cations-_-.__j]-_.:- .

To rcport an Erro., Your Admln User should sut}mlt a $pport requesL by email to heto@oaontocmso,ttrare.com
t"fi+# , 

- 
by tetephone to 470.819"8600 .

fi"eir9-<.ltrrtctionr-, or through the "Help' tau wtttrin tne nittorm. vo,r. la.nirl.lier shorrrd rndLrdainlorriau6n
regardlng the lssue tn the request, such as:

What step! resulted ln the tssue;
What ts the current rejulu
Whtch user experlenc.d tha chaltenge;
Whtt w6s the €xpected resull; €nd
Any x.een shots or tiles that demonltrate lhe irsue.

To Whom Support Ir Avallable

we provld€ onlhe. rrnall, and telepiode consuttauon to your Admin users, the n mes of whom yoi/ have provlded
to Us in wrtLtng, rclardinq Errors. you are anllded to the numba. ot AdFin UseG sp€cjfied tn
:rtr -::.:.-h-r -.::";_-.t.-:r!, ,:-r.yrtth Us. New and reacltvated Admi.l user names and con&t htormarror can be
submltted by cont'cung Your destgnated Account l{anage. and/or by emafl to-]EbjEgrqnlaCmrC&gelllgmtllelh

br--teime to-- 470-8:!:si0A
or throuqh th.

"Help'tab wlthin the Plalform

When Support Is Av.ttable

Rlguhr onllne, e?ru , and tetephone support Is p.ovided mondoy through Fric,ay,8 a.m. to I p,m. (U.S. EasternTlme), excludrng holdays schedured bv us, subject to modrfrcation bv u3 in our re;;rEbre drscr€uon. wa wu prcvrde
online, email,.nd tel.phone suppot"t t... 5.rors.

Our Obllg.tlons

wc sh.ll respond to.ny Error Reporr and shafl lse cofirne.crafiy reiEonab{e eFons to (i) provide support and
consultEtbn to help Your Admtn User r€,otve the Er.or .nd (ii) ll n;essary, provire . p.tch, fix, or workarourd to
any Er.or wlthin a co.nnErclally rc.sonabk tim€ period, given the natrrE of the Error. We,h;I provide,uppo.t
lervices in a professional manner in accordance with indusiry 5tandards.

l\rhat Ir llot Supportod

Support servlces .s described herein do not cover support or servtces for any failure or defeca tn the platlorm thatdoe, not conrritute nn Error as defined above. Furthermore, we have no;t igauon to peform maintrn.nce or
aervlces wlth r.sp.ct to any hardwa.e or software that Is not part of the platfor,; p.ovided by Us. w. sha have no
obllgation to provk e any support slrvices to any persoo other than an Admin Use;.

Wh.t Updatca .nd Upgradel Will B. p.ovtde.t

Orrring the.term of_ _- - subs<riptrcn to rhe ptaform, We ihall make ayaflabte to you any .eteaaes of lhe pt.ttorm
that correctan.y.d.fects, enor, or bugs or that Incorporate mlnor enhnn(errent, to the fonltion.lity (.Updates.) andany reE ses. of the Pratfo.m that incorporae ilgnrficant addluonal or inp.oved feafures, functa:nitiiy, or capaiility('Up9rader"), at no E&Jttional charoe, at the time We maka such Updatas aft, Ugorads generally a;all.bl€ to Ou;
customers lhen'covered by support and ullng the same edibon of the ptattorm--we wiii lnstalt the updatei and

Lowndes county Boar d o( commissioners @
1

I

I

Psonto Consuttins 4



SCHEDULE B
PRONTO SOFTWARE

uperader, bur we wir ur" .o^r...i"rv .."fYof"lP"[1"',"or*iltI-.", d,rine your requ€stet wrn<row, r any.

Lownde5 County Boar d ot commissioners @
2

Pronto Consultiog M



SCHEDULE B
PRONTO SOFTWARE

SUPPORT POLICY
Release.doaumentation is provlded at no ch.rga to You. If You .equest addluonat support and/or tratntng ral.ted toany update or.upgrade, you. rgree to p.y fees and E.sonabre u;vej afld ,etateJ elienses rnaurr.d bi us dudog
sr.rch trainlng. t pdates and upgr.des do not hclude new groducts, suttrs, or modutea that are prtced ard lrcensed
separately from the erlsing oflertng for lrhLh you have a co.ttrirct . 

.

What Verslons ArG Supported

we shall provlde support servrces ror the curran!rereased maror vercron and preceding maJor versron oa th€ fl.uorm,
hcludlng all lJpd.tes for those ve.'ions. you must upgrade 6 the most currini miid vergon of Lhe pratro.,r within
one year of th€ date of lts reteas€.

Planred MaiDt€nahca

y-: 1_"]!!!!.9y1 l"lf:Jructure every Fri.,.y evenhg f.om7:Oo pM central ro ll roo pM Easrem. Durtng thie period,
Your access to the Platform courd be unav.Iable fo. agpaoarmately 20,30 mrnutas .,'ce per rno.1th. !G wlll do our
best to schedule atl other activifles, such as system rcfrirtres and Lpgrades. witfi iou ln advance.

ISy

Low.des County Soard ol Commissioners Pronto Consulting, l-LC

8y

Na me: Bill Slaushtp Namer StevePape

Title chairman Lowndes countv Board of Commirsioners Title: Chief Executive Officer

tow.des county Board ot commissionec @
3

e,onto Con ultlng ",.-?2

I

o"'" Ala.{ L4, ,?.OtQ o"t", /7)?,3110/.9



SCHEDUTE C

PROFTSSIONAL S€RVICES AGRTEMENT BETWEEN PRONTO CONSULTII{6, I,tC
ANO TOWNDES COUNTY EOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

STATEMENT OF WOR(

lnitial lmplementation and configuration of pronto online software as a service for orobation tracki ng and monitorin? of
probahoner comDliance and statu5 (SAAS) for (15) users includint up to (32) hour5 of training of one {1} cli€nt admin
user at aSreed upon location and/or remote trainin€ applications.

DESCRIPTION:

The creation and initial con{iguration of the client Pronto database, the creation ol User accounts and assigning of any
rithts and rolel to tho5e users, and the basic ioftware and network .ontiguEtaon and prepaBtion fo. sottwa.e use. we
will abo provide at no additional cost up to (32) hours of $aining for one {1} cli€nt admin lser gllilgat aeis+e€4

tl Bst 8 houa ard via an oflline meeting/training platform
5uch as WebEx.

ElLtABLE TIME: N/A for lnitial implementation
HOURIY RATE: N/A for lnitial tmptementation

S110.00 per hour ls our current hou.ly rate for additio.al professional 5ervices a5 agreed upon in a
seoarate executed 5talement of wo.k.

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST: S3,5OO,OO DUE IN FUTt UPON SIGNING OF A6REEMENT
SPECIAI CONDITIONS: None

I esrllrtlrro oeltvERY DATE: ',, r.: r; .,::,. ,',i.li,i.i+iij.rr!!i:..i,

lowndes County Eoard of Commisiloners Pronto Consulting, Ll-C

Na me BillSlauphter

Ti e: Chairma Lowndes Count v Board ofcomm sioners Title Chief ve Officer

By:By

-a/
Date AU Date:

DEIIVTRASLE:

Name: StevePaEe

I



SCHEDULE D

ADDENDUM TO PRONTO CONSULTING, LLC MASTER SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT
WITH LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

The following provisions are added to and made a part ofthe Master Subscription Agrcement (the
"Master Srrbscription Agreement") between pro o consulting, LLC (,,pronto consulti-ng") and'thc
Lowndes County Board of Commissioners ("Cus!omer,')

t Complianc-e with-Georgia Open Recordsy'Meetings Acts (O.C.G.A. Sections 50-14-l et scq. and
sections 50-18-70 et seq.). Notwithstanding anything inihe Master subscription Agrecmenr to,]l: :g{ory (including withour limiration its -section 7 (Corfideniislily)), fnONfO
CONSULTING and Customer acknowledge and agree that the Georgia Open RecordVMeetings
Acts shall apply to all documents, Master Subscription Agreemcnt, records, and other writt;
materials, information and items, and certain meetings-of Customer, to which the Open
RecordVMeetings Acts arc applicable, and that Customir may comply with any and all such
olsctosures and requirements as set forth in the Open RecordyMeetings Acts.

2 Georgia Illegal Immigration Reform and Eoforcement Acr; ollicial code of Gcorgis &ctior l3-
10-90 et seq. The attachcd Schedute E, ,,Contract Addendum _ Georgia l ega't lmmigration
Reform and Enforcement Act of20 r 1," is an intcgrar part ofthis Master subscripiion Agrelmcnt,
and the terms and conditions of which shall bc pirficrmed and carried out uy nionto c-onsuttiii
ard Customer as its tcrms provide.

3. Time is the essencc of this Master Subscription Agreement.

4 should any provision of this Schedule D conflict or be inconsistcnt with the remailing provisions
o{ tlc^{asqe1 Subscription Agreemcnr (including without limitation its exhibirs, addindum, and
other Schedules), thcn the provisioas ofthis Schedule D shall control.

5 This Master Subscription Agrecment sha[ not be cffective unress and untir executed by an
authorized representative of each party.

PRONTO CONSULTING, LLC

Signature

Name/Title u

LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

Sign8ture

Name/Title

Date ())

-l-

o"", Uarl AQ, 20lQ



Lowndcs County, GA
CA lllegal lmmigr.tion Reform 6nd Enforc..rNd Acl

Required Cont.rct Add.odum
(r.vi!ed F.bruary l, 2012)

S.h€dule E

CONTRACT ADDENDUM
GEORCIA ILLEGAL IMMICRATION
REFORM AND trNFORCEMENT ACT

Th rs Addendum, ontered into as of thc 3ltrvot m zrz, .2019. isEn addendum to that
cenain contract .ntitled Masrer Subscriptioffigreem.i, ,'frffii- pgr, }1}c2ft zoe 6lre
"Contmct") between the Lowrdcs County Board of Cornmissioners (,,Lownd/s County',) and Pronto
Consu ltin8, LLC (the "Cont.sctor") (Lowndcs County aod the Conuacto. bcing collectivcly thc ,,P.rtics,').

In consid..atiot ofthc tcrms, conditions arrd obligations in the Con(ract, and as a rcquirqm!$t for
Contractor to subrnit itr bid with rcspect to thc Conkact, the Parrics hereby agrce as follows:

A. This Addendum is arl integral part of the Contr.ct and in the event of any conflict or incoNist6lcy with
thc Cont.rct (including my and all other 8mcndmeflts, rddendums, schedules, exhibils, or othcr p3.ts or
prcvisions thorcof) this Addcndr.rm shall coltrol, The Contract, as supplcm€nted by this Adde urn,
remains in full force and efFcct in all othcr rcspccts.

B. Purruartt lo the Ceorgia lllcgal lmmigration Reform and Enforcement Act of20l l, Sections 2 aod 3, as
amendcd (O.C.C.A. 0 l3- l0-90 ct seq., thc "Acr"), rhe Contractor undersrands and agrees that compliancc
with the requirements ofthc Act and Ceorgia Dcpartment of l,abor Rulcs 3OO- 10- l-.01 ct scq. (and, ifthis
Contract is a contrect or agreentent relating to public t.anspodrtion, $rith the rules and regulatioos .ega.diog
thc Act ofthc Georgia Depanment ofTransF,ortation; the "GDOT Rules"), each as emended, are conditions
oi this Contrsct, and the Contractor hereby agrces to so comply with such requirem€nts. Thc Contnctor
further agrees that such compliance shall bc attcated by the Contractor ahrough cxecution ofthc cortractor
affidavil required by the Act and the rulcs and rcgulations thcrcunder, or a substantially 5imilar contractor
amdavit (lhe 'rcontractor Affidavit"). The fully cxecuted Corh.ctor Amdavit is attachcd hcreto as
Attachrncot I and is ircorporatcd into this Addandum by refcrcncc herein.

C. Thc Contractor undcrstands and ag.ees that, in the event the Cottractor employs or contracts wi6 Bny
subconlractor or subco .actors (including any contract cmployee or staffing agency) in conneclion with
lhe ConlEct. 6e Contractor shall:

l, Scoure in 'rriting frorn cach such subcontractoran attcstation ofthc iubcontracto.'s coBpliancc
with the Act and Ocorgia Dcpanmcnt of Labor Rulcs j00.1G l-.0I et scq. (and, if this Contract
is a contract or agrccmcat rclating lo public traEportrtion, wth the ODOT Rules), each as
amcndcd, by causing cach such subcontractor to execute lhe subcofltracto. affidsvit requircd
by theAct and the rulcs and regula(ions therculder, the form ofwhich is attached as Ahachmcnt
ll 8nd inco.porated by refcrcnce hcrein, or a substantially similar subcontracto. affidavit (thc
"Subcoltrsctor Amdavit"). Thc Cootrsctor further undcrstands and ag.ees $at thc Cont.actor
shall rcquire thc executed Subcontr8ctor Affidavit to bccome a part ofthe agrecmeot bctwccn
the Contraotor 6od cach sucl subcoutractor

2 Rcquire any cmployee, contractol, or subcontracto. of Contractor or any subcont acto.s with
rcsp<rt to the Contract to also satisry th€ requiremtnts ofthis Contract Addcndum.

D'. upon conrracting with a new subconrmctor for purposes of or related to contractor's duries srd
obligatioff underlhe Contract, Co ractor o. anyapplicabli subcootractors shall, rs acondition ofanysuch

-t-



Lownd.3 Cotnty, GA
GA IIIcSal lmmigration Rcfom .nd Enforccmcnt Act

Rcquir.d Contract Addendum
(rcvised Fcbru.ry l, 201 2)

colkact or subcontrac( ent€rcd into for pu.poses ofor rel8tcd to Contractor's dutios ard obligations undcr
the Contract, providc Lowrdes County with wriner notiqe of the idcnrity oflry and all such subscquent
subcont.actors hirqd or contrsctcd by Contractor or any applicablc subcontrartors. Such notice shall bo
providcd within five (5) business days of entering into a contlact or ag(ecmcnr for hire with any
subco[tGctor. Srrch notice shall include an exBcuted affidavit from each subsequcnt coltractor in a fonn
substantially similar to thc attached Subcont.actor Affid3vit. Said Subcontrsctor Affidlvit shallatt€3t to
the subclntrsctor's narne and address, t-Vcrify/Federal Work Au$orizrtion Program uscr idcntilrcstion
number and datc ofauthorization to use the Federal Work Authorization P.ogr.m, tlre namc ofthc projcct,
and the namc ofthe public cmploycr for the projcct.

E. Ahy affida.vit elccut€d pursuant to this Contract Add.ndlm and the Act shall be considercd an opcn
public .ecord under O.C.G.A. g 50-18-70 er seq.; provided, however, that any information prot€cled from
public disclosurc by fcd.ral law o. by Article 4 ofChapter l8 of Titl€ 50 of O,C.G.A shall b€ rcdacted.
[.ow8dcs County shall maintain any affidavits cxecuted pursuan o this Contract Addendum for five yesrs
from the date of receipt. The Contraclor shall maintain records of each subcontrsctor aflidavit required
hereunder for inspectiou at 8ny time by the State ofCeorgia or Lowndes County.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, caoh ofthe Parties hereto has caused this Addendum to be cxccuEd
as a sealcd instrument througil thei. duly authorized officers or rep.cscflt.tivcs as ofthe date set fodh
above.

LOWNDES COUMY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

By,
Bill Sla rman

Paige Dukcs, Lowndes County Clcrk

PRONTO CONSULTING, LLC
rtillll rr,
ron o

By:
J l<.v e

Attestl

,G

s

2

, ltt



Lowndcs Co0!ty, GA
GA IllcSal Inmigaation Rcfom and Enforccrts{ Aca

Rcquircd Conract Addqtdum
Gcviscd Fcbrurry l, 2012)

Alaechm.nt I
STATE OF GEORGIA
LOWNDES COUNTY

1331 rt t

CONTRICTOR AFTIDAVM AND ACREEMENT

ln.ontl.crion with thc Conmqoas 5d. to, p.ojcd [o., srd/or ContE.t,{iti thc Lownd.s County Boad ofCommissiona- involvira thc physicrl E€rfo.m*c ofrcrviccs and,/or hbor by d.. Contr.clor, thr uldanign d,who, rfiar b.ing duly swor4 irtct un& ot$ rnd rt,.cj to for.nd on lchllfofthr Contractor ss Follow!:

-.. 8y .xccutirS rhis Affidavil, thc unArsign!_vcjfiB rh. cornplirn c of the Cool.actor with thc G.o.gialllc8ll Immigrurion Rcform .nd Enf6emcnr Aciolzol t, scctions 2 rid i, 
" "r"ia"a <o.c.o.e. g lt.t0-90 crscq'hc"Aq ) and G@r8i. Dcp!flr*nt ofLrbor nrr*:oci-ro-r-.oi"i.q i"J, i*-" io-n-o.., o,.s,..."n,,.u,ine!o public rranspo'r'rion. wrrh rhc rulc! r"""rding rh. a,r or rr,. ciorgi;ffii"ir-oiir-.po-,io", ,r," .coor

Rulcs"), !r.lin8 allirmrrivclv $.r rhc indivrtul[ 61m, 6a ser?ol!,io,iC*o[* ir*ni.l *r,t,r, i. ro conE..tingwith rnd/or pcrtorminr phiical scrviccs andlor iab. i* m L"*"0*i*,fr'6o"Jiit'o_rirrio,*rs q,o"*.,countr') hli r.giJr.rcd wirr\ i! autho.izcd ro urc, is usrng, snd wi conrinurio u.irr.ulto* ,r," r"rm ofdi. !.lcro' proj'ct for' end/or conr,.cr wirh Lowrd.s cor.,y. , ila".r w"* ir,i'";;rr*-'ffi;"",. in rccordrn r widrrhc eppticabtc provirions 
'od 

d.adrin.s lsrlbrbhrd; ilA;;ib;;;i; ;pln ni oil"*, *ur. roo.,o_t-.oz(.nd, for r conrr.c or agrccmcnr r.taring ro pubti" 
".""p;i.;;;;"u,:h.d"tffilt'ibt l*,*1.

. 
Thc udBsign.d Conrr.ctor iurthcr rgrces rhat,iiould it crrploy or conrrsct ,rith any ,ubco.rmdo(r) in

::ll::l:l -:ih 
c:"q*ror'3 s!t. ro, projccr f;r, 

"nao, 
conu-rcr *jtrr'ir i iio*,iiL *i.r, ,ti, ona"ri, t,grvcn, thcn th. undrrsitncd Conh.cor wiI acurc ft-om. suctr oUcont .cro4ifi*ti.i-#ifii ,on of *nptr.nc! withrhc Acr and ccorgi. D.prnmcnl of L.bor Rutcs 300- t0- l-.0I 

" 
*q iili f*;;;;;ct or agrccmenr rctutng topublic krnspofl.a!ion, verific.tion ofcompli.ncc.wi,r, ,r,. coo-r'irL],rliiil,gl ,r,o*rui";nn"",or" 

"*6curion 
ofrhcsubtonrrctor Amdav[t rcqui'cd by thc Act rnd rh" .,r., .na .ogur.ii*s ;1i,or;ri t-hi,nocrrigncd conr.crortunhq atrc6 to nrinr.in ..cord. of $rch conpri.n* 

"u 
p-"ia-"iioii;;;:il i;*,,*ror Arlidrvir .ndvcri.cltie ro Lowndes counry wrthin fiw (5) busin"" a.vi,o",ii",r'#*.oliii r"*"in"a. no ama",t, to,ncacn sub*qucot crntr.ctor.hsll inctudc rhc aubcorl.;1"i, t"i,"U-,rU""iii.'.,irij'n"* *A.aA.,r, g-vcriry/Fclcrrr work Aurhor2lrion p'"'."- ,'*' ra.i,iiii-.,i-;ffi";il ffi';il;;zrrron ro u.,hc F.d.r.rwork Auhonz.rion prosrrm. rhc name-ofthc pro;.",. 

""i,ij "".. "iir,.ijiil i.r"rJyl,i", *" rrl.r.

Contrsctor,s E-vcri fr/Fcdcral Wo(k Ao(horizalion Nrme of Projcct
Services

ProSr.m Usc. ldcntification Number

L.wnd.s County

-llgd-arc"rE*kslor.rsNrm. of Public Employet

[Signatures con tinue on /oltow htg pageJ

3



I DECLARE UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY

_ l,owld.t Cqldy, GA
GA llLgrlInmi8nrio. R.form,nd Eofo.call. Act

R!qui..d Co r.cr Addadum
(r.vi!rd Fcbru.ry l, 20 I 2)

THAT THE FOREGOING
rS TRUE AND CORRECT , AND AGREE TO THE FOREGOINC FOR ANDON OF THE CONTRACTOR

o f Contrrclo(

Name

Ti ofAuthori?rd or Atent ofCont,actor

Pri €d NB ofAuthorized Ofllcar oa ASenl ofConrrcior

700. l Colonv Park

Contrrclor's Addrcss
enD

Swqrn 16 ar6 suBcrib.d
Thls of

Norrry public

My rornmi3tion cxpiE!:

t,
,ll. Any ofthc alactaonic v.rific.tion authorizrliofl proiralrs op6r!t?d by *tc Unitcd Stltcs Dcpattlrud ofHolncland Sc.urity o. anr.quivllea fcdcral work auioaizatioo PrQgrarn opcnt.d by h. Unikd Statci Dcprmcnlof Hom.llnd Sccu.ity ao v.riry inforo.tion of ncwly hircd cmp loyaar, co.lrmonly known !s E-V.rify.

4

*ff*a.:L
P:ront(



- Lownd.6 Cou y, CA
GA llles.i immigr.tion Rcform.nd Enfoncol.nl Act

Rcquircd Contrect Addendum

Gcvis.d Febrq.ry l, 20t2)

STATE OF GEORGIA
LOWNDES COUNTY

Att.chnr€nt II

SUBCONTRACTOR AT'FIDAVIT AIID AGREEMEM
ln corrncc{ion with tlp Subcontrsctor,s contr8.t with

:-::,1,-.*i,h c".r.","iiiii" io, p.i*i;, fu; c-;" "rr,,m;;Aa13:[Tj,f1]uommrssroners involvint th. physicrt ocrformrncc or s"."i"", ;;;;i;;";; d,c conr.!cb{, rheundcrsiSncd, who,.aftcr bcing duly swom, u"t., ,na". *,t 
-ino 

"grl'ii-ilr"r""a on bchrlf of thcSubconkactor !s followsi

^ . BJ exccuting this Affidavit, rhe und.Eigncd verifics rhc cohpliance ofthc subcontractor with trlcOeorgia Illet!l lmrnigrarion Reform ,n.i Enfo,.ccmcnt Acr of20l l, Sciion, i ina l-, 
"s 

r."nO"d (O.C.O.A.g r3.r0_e0 cr seq., rhc .,Ac.,) 
and ccorBi. D.;;;;i';i ilil;Jill iiol,ti'. r, cr seq. (8nd. ro. Econt..ct or .Srccmcnt rclatinr to ouhtic transpod.tion, with Ulc ,"i*-Lg"rdi", ',h" 

Act of thc ccorSieDcpertmenr of Transpoaation; trr. ,,coor rtrr*,f, Jr.ti"e ,ft;;;il';';,i.il" i.dividuat, firn, orcorpor.tion subcontr.cto, hcrcundcr hes r!8is,"r.l **t, i 
"ri,r,liir";;;;'", :jlisi"* *o *i co inuc rousc hroughout iB conksc period with rhc Conrractor, . fia"J'w".il iilijrizition pro8r.m, io

i'""r"#'ffiJ:tJlir:ilii':'ig::'[':J" r't"uario.s .ruirisliJi; ;" ;;il'L,th ocFi,.nt or

"stauilsrrea 
in tie d6oiirL;' \'rrs' tor a contncl or egrcemcnt rclating to pubiic r."nspo,r.tion,

v qt1y
Su 's E-ve Scrv

P.ogram Usca cation Number
riryncdcr.t Wo* Authorization Namc ofPojcctIdcntifi

2_U
Dale d

Contractor Hiri ng Subcontr.cto.

Lowodcs Counry

--8qrd of Commissioners
Namc ofPublic Employcr

[Signatv.r contihue on Jollov ing page]

5



- Lowndet Cdmry' CA
CA lllcg.l lmmigratron R.form rnd Enfor.crn nt Acr

Rcqlir.d Conr.d Addqdum
(rwir.d a*ru..y l,20I2)

THE FOREGOING
I DECLARE I,iNDEi, PSNALTY OF PERJURY THAT
IS TRU' ANO CORRECT , AND ACREE TO THE FO RECOINC FOR ANDON LF OF THE S UBCONTRACTOR

Au
t, Z0t

or Agent ofSubcontrsctor Dale

h
Subcontractor 's Name

! (
Titlc of Authorizcd Offi.er gcnt ofSubcontractor

(1

Printed of Authodzed Officcr or Agcrt of S ubcontractor

/-\ *700
SubcontRctor':

Swom to 8!ld subs. ribed
This fl day of e

tstr
Notary P!bl

My commission

Y,
rtr

o

I
C

r Any ofthc clcctronic vcrification ofwork rutho.iz.tion progrrms op.6tcd by rhc Unitld Strtes
fi HTff tjffi*":j. 

|!H'#.i',T{ ",1,"r-, 
t a",ir *i'r 

",iii',i'"ii"""il!,", op.,,r.a uy,r,"
commonly krcwn as E-ve.iry. 'curity 

to vcriry infonnrtion of nc*ly hire? cmpLy;r, ' -

6



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: Bemiss Springs Acceptance of Water and Sewer 
Infrastructure  

  
 

  

DATE OF MEETING: May 14, 2024   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: $0.00 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

  
(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Bemiss Springs Acceptance of Water and Sewer 
Infrastructure 

 
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: Bemiss Springs Subdivision is located on Bemiss Road near the Bemiss 
Community. Utilities staff has made the final inspection of the project and the utility work is complete and 
constructed to county specifications. Staff recommends acceptance of the water and sewer infrastructure for 
Bemiss Springs Subdivision and authorize the Chairman to sign the resolution. 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1. Approve 

2. Board's Pleasure 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 
  
DEPARTMENT: Utilities                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: Steve Stalvey 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 



RESOLUTION
WHEREAS, the developer, Stoker Utilities, LLC has completed improvements on 

Bemiss Springs Subdivision; and 

WHEREAS, Stoker Utilities, LLC has provided the necessary maintenance bond 
and certification that the improvements were built according to plans and 

specifications;

WHEREAS, the utilities division has inspected the improvements;

WHEREAS, Stoker Utilities, LLC has provided a written request for Lowndes 
County to accept the water and sewer infrastructure only, as County 

maintained;
        

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Commissioners of Lowndes 
County has agreed to accept this infrastructure as county maintained on this 

date as shown:

ATTEST: _______________________________________
     County Clerk

DATE: _______________        

Copy: Rachel Strom, RDC
Lakassa Baker, Tax Assessor

Robin Cumbus, LCPW
Tonya Davis, E-911

Diane Carter, Building Inspections
Trinni Amiot, Planning
Appropriate Post Office



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: 2024 Local Maintenance and Improvement Grant (LMIG) 
Resurfacing Bids  

  
 

  

DATE OF MEETING: May 14, 2024   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: $1,194,081.20 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

  
(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(  ) N/A 
(X) SPLOST/LMIG  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: 2024 Resurfacing Bids  
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: The 2024 Local Maintenance and Improvement Grant (LMIG) Application was 
approved by the Commission on January 8, 2024.  The grant was approved by the Georgia Department of 
Transportation and staff advertised the project for bids.  The 2024 LMIG Resurfacing bids presented include 
resurfacing the following roads: Briarwood Road, Dasher Grove Road, River Road, Old US 41, Eastridge Drive, 
Laurelwood North, Laurelwood South, Meadowood Circle, Springbrook Drive, Summer Field Drive, Fiddlers 
Bend Drive, Pebble Creek Drive, and Sandy Run Drive.  The details for each road listed are attached in the 
agenda packet. 
 
Bids were opened on May 2, 2024, and staff received two bids.  
 
The Scruggs Company - $1,194,081.20 
Reames and Son Construction - $1,614,087.02 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1. Approve The Scruggs Company as the low bidder and authorize the Chairman to sign the 

contract for $1,194,081.20. 
2. Redirect.  

  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 
  
DEPARTMENT: Engineering                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: Chad McLeod 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 



ENG 2024-01: 2024 Resurfacing 
Project Information Sheet 

 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Briarwood Road – .25 Miles – 24’ wide – Beginning at CR 532 (Westside Road) Ending at joint 
at Valdosta City Limits 

 Bituminous tack coat before each lift 

 Leveling – 80lbs OGI 

 Topping – 165lbs 12.5 mm Superpave 

 Pick up all shoulder clippings on entire road 

 Shoulder grading – see detail 

 Permanent grassing (Hydro-seed) 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after leveling 

 Temporary centerline and edge line stripe 4” wide – once after topping 

 Permanent centerline and edge line stripe 5” wide – 15 days after topping 

 RPMs 
 
Dasher Grove Road – .56 Miles – 26’ wide – Beginning at CR 868 (Old US 41) Ending at joint 
before Roundabout (Dead End) 

 Bituminous tack coat before each lift 

 Leveling – 80lbs OGI 

 Topping – 165lbs 12.5 mm Superpave 

 Pick up all shoulder clippings on entire road 

 Shoulder grading – see detail 

 Permanent grassing (Hydro-seed) 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after leveling 

 Temporary centerline and edge line stripe 4” wide – once after topping 

 Permanent centerline and edge line stripe 5” wide – 15 days after topping 

 Adjust manholes to grade (6) 

 RPMs 
 
River Road – 1.37 Miles – 25’ wide – Beginning at CR 920 (Reed Rd) Ending at CR 777 (Cat 
Creek Rd) 

 Bituminous tack coat before each lift 

 Leveling – 80lbs OGI 

 Topping – 165lbs 12.5 mm Superpave 

 Pick up all shoulder clippings on entire road 

 Shoulder grading – see detail 

 Permanent grassing (Hydro-seed) 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after leveling 

 Temporary centerline and edge line stripe 4” wide – once after topping 

 Permanent centerline and edge line stripe 5” wide – 15 days after topping 

 2 Stop Bars (24” Thermoplastic) 

 Thermoplastic Pavement Marking, Arrow, Type 2(4) 

 RPMs 
 



ENG 2024-01: 2024 Resurfacing 
Project Information Sheet 

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Old US 41 – 0.50 Miles – 22’ wide – Beginning at SR 7 Ending at SR 7 

 Bituminous tack coat before each lift 

 Milling – width of road bed – 1.5” deep entire length of road 

 Topping – 165lbs 12.5 mm Superpave 

 Pick up all shoulder clippings on entire road 

 Shoulder grading – see detail 

 Permanent grassing (Hydro-seed) 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after leveling 

 Temporary centerline and edge line stripe 4” wide – once after topping 

 Permanent centerline and edge line stripe 5” wide – 15 days after topping 

 Adjust manhole to grade 

 Crosswalk and gore striping 

 1 Stop Bar (24" Thermoplastic) 

 RPMs 
 



ENG 2024-01: 2024 Resurfacing 
Project Information Sheet 

 
*** Meadow Woods Subdivision *** 

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Eastridge Drive – 0.21 Miles – 22’ wide – Beginning at CR 29 (Clyattstone Road) Ending at 
Dead End 

 Bituminous tack coat before each lift 

 Leveling – 80lbs OGI 

 Topping – 165lbs 12.5 mm Superpave 

 Pick up all shoulder clippings on entire road 

 Shoulder grading – see detail 

 Permanent grassing (Hydro-seed) 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after leveling 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after topping 

 Permanent centerline stripe 5” wide – 15 days after topping 
 
Laurelwood North – 0.05 Miles – 22’ wide – Beginning at CR 967 (Summer Field Drive) Ending 
at Dead End 

 Bituminous tack coat before each lift 

 Leveling – 80lbs OGI 

 Topping – 165lbs 12.5 mm Superpave 

 Pick up all shoulder clippings on entire road 

 Shoulder grading – see detail 

 Permanent grassing (Hydro-seed) 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after leveling 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after topping 

 Permanent centerline stripe 5” wide – 15 days after topping 

 1 Stop Bar (24” Thermoplastic) 
 
Laurelwood South – 0.13 Miles – 22’ wide – Beginning at CR 967 (Summer Field Drive) Ending 
at Dead End 

 Bituminous tack coat before each lift 

 Leveling – 80lbs OGI 

 Topping – 165lbs 12.5 mm Superpave 

 Pick up all shoulder clippings on entire road 

 Shoulder grading – see detail 

 Permanent grassing (Hydro-seed) 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after leveling 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after topping 

 Permanent centerline stripe 5” wide – 15 days after topping 

 1 Stop Bar (24” Thermoplastic) 
  



ENG 2024-01: 2024 Resurfacing 
Project Information Sheet 

 
*** Meadow Woods Subdivision *** 

 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Meadowood Circle – 0.07 Miles – 22’ wide – Beginning at CR 974 (Eastridge Drive) Ending at 
Dead End 

 Bituminous tack coat before each lift 

 Leveling – 80lbs OGI 

 Topping – 165lbs 12.5 mm Superpave 

 Pick up all shoulder clippings on entire road 

 Shoulder grading – see detail 

 Permanent grassing (Hydro-seed) 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after leveling 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after topping 

 Permanent centerline stripe 5” wide – 15 days after topping 

 1 Stop Bar (24” Thermoplastic) 
 
Springbrook Drive – 0.28 Miles – 22’ wide – Beginning at CR 974 (Eastridge Drive) Ending at 
Dead End 

 Bituminous tack coat before each lift 

 Leveling – 80lbs OGI 

 Topping – 165lbs 12.5 mm Superpave 

 Pick up all shoulder clippings on entire road 

 Shoulder grading – see detail 

 Permanent grassing (Hydro-seed) 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after leveling 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after topping 

 Permanent centerline stripe 5” wide – 15 days after topping 

 1 Stop Bar (24” Thermoplastic) 
 
Summer Field Drive – 0.29 Miles – 22’ wide – Beginning at CR 868 (Old US Hwy 41) Ending at 
CR 968 (Springbrook Drive) 

 Bituminous tack coat before each lift 

 Leveling – 80lbs OGI 

 Topping – 165lbs 12.5 mm Superpave 

 Pick up all shoulder clippings on entire road 

 Shoulder grading – see detail 

 Permanent grassing (Hydro-seed) 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after leveling 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after topping 

 Permanent centerline stripe 5” wide – 15 days after topping 

 1 Stop Bar (24” Thermoplastic) 
 



ENG 2024-01: 2024 Resurfacing 
Project Information Sheet 

 
*** Pebble Creek Estates *** 

 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Fiddlers Bend Drive – .07 Miles – 23’ wide – Beginning at CR 897 (Pebble Creek Dr) Ending at 
CR 899 (Sandy Run Dr) 

 Bituminous tack coat before each lift 

 Leveling – 80lbs OGI 

 Topping – 165lbs 12.5 mm Superpave 

 Pick up all shoulder clippings on entire road 

 Shoulder grading – see detail 

 Permanent grassing (Hydro-seed) 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after leveling 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after topping 

 Permanent centerline stripe 5” wide – 15 days after topping 

 2 Stop Bars (24” Thermoplastic) 

 RPMs 
 
Pebble Creek Drive – .79 Miles – 23’ wide – Beginning at CR 777 (Cat Creek Rd) Ending at CR 
897 (Pebble Creek Dr) 

 Bituminous tack coat before each lift 

 Leveling – 80lbs OGI 

 Topping – 165lbs 12.5 mm Superpave 

 Pick up all shoulder clippings on entire road 

 Shoulder grading – see detail 

 Permanent grassing (Hydro-seed) 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after leveling 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after topping 

 Permanent centerline stripe 5” wide – 15 days after topping 

 2 Stop Bars (24” Thermoplastic) 

 RPMs 
 
Sandy Run Drive – 0.28 Miles – 23’ wide – Beginning at CR 777 (Cat Creek Road) Ending at 
Dead End 

 Bituminous tack coat before each lift 

 Leveling – 80lbs OGI 

 Topping – 165lbs 12.5 mm Superpave 

 Pick up all shoulder clippings on entire road 

 Shoulder grading – see detail 

 Permanent grassing (Hydro-seed) 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after leveling 

 Temporary centerline stripe 4” wide – once after topping 

 Permanent centerline stripe 5” wide – 15 days after topping 

 1 Stop Bar (24” Thermoplastic) 




	1. Call To Order
	2. Invocation
	3. Pledge Of Allegiance To The Flag
	4. ACCG 2024 Legislative Service Award Presentation
	5. Minutes For Approval
	a. Work Session - April 22, 2024 & Regular Session - 

	6. Appointment
	a. Hospital Authority of Valdosta and Lowndes County
	Hospital Authority of Valdosta and Lowndes County
	Hospital Authority Correspondence
	Shirley J. Garland Appointee Information
	Elsie Napier Appointee Information
	Helen Baker Appointee Information


	7. Public Hearing
	a. Abandonment of a Portion of Race Track Road SE
	Agenda Item Report
	Race Track Road SE Abandonment - Resolution
	Affidavit 12.07.49 PM copy
	Highlighted Plat Race Track Road SE Road to Abandon
	Letter requesting Road Abandonment_Mike Fletcher 02.15.24(422112.1)

	b. REZ-2024-07 Hester Property, Skipper Bridge Road, A portion of (0103 062), 2.5 ac., E-A to R-A, Well & Septic
	Agenda Item Report
	Preliminary Plat
	LOI
	REZ-2024-07Z
	REZ-2024-07F
	REZ-2024-07W

	c. REZ-2024-08 River Road, 4374 River Road, ~15ac, R-21 to P-D, County Utilities
	Agenda Item Report
	REZ-2024-08 LOI
	Conceptual Site Plan 04-26-2024
	REZ-2024-08Z
	REZ-2024-08F
	REZ-2024-08W

	d. REZ-2024-09 Dasher Grove Subdivision, A portion of (0072 191) ~193ac, R-1 to R-1, R-10 & C-G, County Utilities
	Agenda Item Report
	Dasher Grove Conceptual
	LOI
	REZ-2024-09Z
	REZ-2024-09F
	REZ-2024-09W

	e. REZ-2024-10 Mineola Holding, LLC, 3974 Old US HWY 41 ~0.69ac, R-21 to O-I, County Utilities
	Agenda Item Report
	REZ-2024-10 LOI
	REZ-2024-10Z
	REZ-2024-10F
	REZ-2024-10W

	f. REZ-2024-11 Quarterman Estates Ph. 5 4448, 4450, 4454 Whitewater Rd. ~3.66ac,R-1 & R-21 to R-10, County Utilities
	Agenda Item Report
	REZ-2024-11 LOI
	REZ-2024-11Z
	REZ-2024-11F
	REZ-2024-11W

	g. REZ-2024-12 Vicky King 4829 Carter Lane, ~2.98ac, R-A to R-1, Well and Septic
	Agenda Item Report
	REZ-2024-12 LOI
	REZ-2024-12Z
	REZ-2024-12F
	REZ-2024-12W
	REZ-2024-12 Support Letter


	8. For Consideration
	a. Hall Road Paving & Drainage, P.I. 0016281 - Transportation Improvement Act (TIA) Project Agreement
	Agenda Item Report
	PI-0016281 - Lowndes County - TIA Local Agreement - IGTIA2402104

	b. Pronto Consulting, LLC Agreement, Amended Schedule A
	Agenda Item Report
	Pronto Consulting contract 

	c. Bemiss Springs Acceptance of Water and Sewer Infrastructure
	Agenda Item Report
	RESOLUTION Bemiss Springs Subdivision


	9. Bid
	a. 2024 Local Maintenance and Improvement Grant (LMIG) Resurfacing Bids
	Agenda Item Report
	ENG 2024-01 2024 Resurfacing Detail Sheet
	ENG 2024-01 2024 Resurfacing Bid Tabulation Sheet
	ENG 2024-01 Resurfacing Contact - Not Executed


	10. Reports - County Manager
	11. Citizens Wishing To Be Heard - Please State Your Name and Address
	12. Adjournment

	Text Field 1: Race Track Road SE - Proposed Road Abandonment
	Text Field 2: 
	Text Field 3: 
	Text Field 4: The Valdosta Daily Times
	Text Field 5:  4/26; 5/ 3/2024
	Text Field 6: 3
	Text Field 7: May 2024


